GOld Coast www.goldcoasthealthplan.org
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A Public Entity

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed
Care Commission (VCMMCC) dba
Gold Coast Health Plan
Executive / Finance Committee Meeting

2240 E. Gonzales, Suite 230, Oxnard, CA 93036
Thursday, November 7, 2013
3:00 p.m.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENT

1. APPROVE MINUTES
a. October 3, 2013 Reqular Executive / Finance Meeting Minutes

2. ACCEPT AND FILE ITEMS
a. CEO Update
b. September Financials
C. FY 2012-13 Audit Results

CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session - Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54956.9 Lucas v. Regional Government Services et al,
VCSC Case No. 56-2013-00432444-CU-CE-VTA

Announcement from Closed Session, if any.

Meeting Agenda available at http://www.goldcoasthealthplan.org

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS RELATING TO THIS AGENDA AND MATERIALS RELATED TO AN AGENDA ITEM
SUBMITTED TO THE COMMISSION AFTER DISTRIBUTION OF THE AGENDA PACKET ARE AVAILABLE FOR
PUBLIC REVIEW DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE OFFICE OF THE CLERK OF THE BOARD,
1701 LOMBARD STREET, SUITE 100, OXNARD, CA.

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE TO
PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT TRACI AT 805/889-6900. REASONABLE ADVANCE
NOTIFICATION OF THE NEED FOR ACCOMMODATION PRIOR TO THE MEETING (48 HOURS ADVANCE NOTICE
IS PREFERABLE) WILL ENABLE US TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS TO ENSURE ACCESSIBILITY
TO THIS MEETING

2220 East Gonzales Road, Suite 200, Oxnard, Ca 93036 | Member Services: 888-301-1228 | Fax: 805-981-5314
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission (VCMMCC) dba
Gold Coast Health Plan

Executive Finance Committee Meeting Agenda (continued)

2240 E. Gonzalez, Room 230, Oxnard, CA

November 7, 2013 at 3:00 p.m.

COMMENTS FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS

ADJOURNMENT

Unless otherwise determined, the next regular meeting of the Executive / Finance Committee

Meeting will be held on January 2, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. at 2240 E. Gonzales Road, Suite 230, Oxnard
CA 93036

Meeting Agenda available at http://www.goldcoasthealthplan.org

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS RELATING TO THIS AGENDA AND MATERIALS RELATED TO AN AGENDA ITEM
SUBMITTED TO THE COMMISSION AFTER DISTRIBUTION OF THE AGENDA PACKET ARE AVAILABLE FOR
PUBLIC REVIEW DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE OFFICE OF THE CLERK OF THE BOARD,
1701 LOMBARD STREET, SUITE 100, OXNARD, CA.

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE TO
PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT TRACI AT 805/889-6900. REASONABLE ADVANCE
NOTIFICATION OF THE NEED FOR ACCOMMODATION PRIOR TO THE MEETING (48 HOURS ADVANCE NOTICE

IS PREFERABLE) WILL ENABLE US TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS TO ENSURE ACCESSIBILITY
TO THIS MEETING

2220 East Gonzales Road, Suite 200, Oxnard, Ca 93036 | Member Services: 888-301-1228 | Fax: 805-981-5314



Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission
(VCMMCC) dba Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP)
Executive / Finance Committee Meeting Minutes

October 3, 2013

(Not official until approved)

CALL TO ORDER

Chair Gonzalez called the meeting to order at 3:01 p.m. in Suite 230 at the Ventura
County Public Health Building located at 2240 E. Gonzales Road, Oxnard, CA 93036.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Eileen Fisler, Ventura County Medical Health System

David Glyer, Private Hospitals / Healthcare System

Robert Gonzalez, MD, Ventura County Medical Health System
Roberto Juarez, Clinicas del Camino Real, Inc.

ABSENT / EXCUSED
Vacant, Clinicas del Camino Real, Inc.

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE

Michael Engelhard, CEO

Michelle Raleigh, CFO

Nancy Kierstyn Schreiner, Legal Counsel
Traci R. McGinley, Clerk of the Board

Guillermo Gonzalez, Government Relations Director
Lyndon Turner, Finance Manager

PUBLIC COMMENTS

None.

1. APPROVE MINUTES

a. Auqust 1, 2013 Reqular Meeting Minutes
Clerk McGinley noted that under Introductions, “Matt Moschel from Berkley Research
Group (BRG)” should read: “Matt Levine from Berkley Research Group (BRG).”

Committee Member Glyer moved to approve the August 1, 2013 Regular Meeting
Minutes as corrected. Chair Gonzalez seconded. The motion carried. Approved 3-0,
with Committee Member Juarez abstaining.

GCHP Executive / Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
October 3, 2013 — Page 1 of 4
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2. ACCEPT AND FILE ITEMS

a. CEO Update
CEO Engelhard provided an update on proposed rules for the Basic Health Plan option

that were recently released by Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS).

The California Medical Association filed a petition with the U.S. Supreme Court to
review a lower court’s decision on the AB 97 provider rate reductions.

Starting January 2014 all Medi-Cal managed care plans are required to offer outpatient
behavior health benefits. GCHP is waiting for final rules to be published by California
Department Health Care Services (DHCS). The Plan is working to meet the tight
deadlines and does not expect to receive a contract amendment and rates from DHCS
until mid-November.

CEO Engelhard reported that the current federal government shutdown does not impact
“‘mandatory programs” like Medicare, Medicaid and Social Security.

The Healthy Families Program (HFP) Transition has gone smoothly; approximately 90%
of children have been assigned to a Primary Care Physician (PCP). Throughout the
transition, GCHP staff reached out to Members to inform them on how and where to get
assistance and to answer questions. CEO Engelhard also recognized the efforts of
contracted providers’ outreach efforts to ensure that children had a PCP.

b. August Financials (Unaudited)
CFO Raleigh reviewed the unaudited August Financials and highlighted that the Plan is
ahead of budget. The Plan reported positive net income for the month of August.
These results helped the Plan build the required TNE to $10.3 million, just short of the
phased-in requirement of $10.7 million by approximately $400,000. Further discussion
was held regarding the future required levels of TNE.

CFO Raleigh reported that the State has provided a new rate package for FY 2013-14;
however there are questions on how some of the figures were determined. CEO
Engelhard added that GCHP had a meeting with the State regarding the new rates.

It was noted that page 2b-7 should be disregarded and an update will be provided at the
next meeting.

CFO Raleigh continued reviewing the material and noted that due to Targeted Low
Income Children (TLIC) population, the Plan increased Incurred But Not Paid (IBNP)
reserve up to approximately $40 million.

Chair Gonzalez suggested that the Plan report on a few, consistent number metrics of
the pharmacy data on a monthly basis.

GCHP Executive / Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
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Committee Member Juarez commented about obtaining better reporting on utilization,
emergency room, hospitalization and immunization. CEO Engelhard explained that the
Plan did report utilization at the last Commission meeting and with MedInsight, the
Plan’s health care analytical tool; the Plan will begin to have the ability to obtain that
type of information from claims data on a more consistent basis. In December the Plan
will convert to a new Medical Management System (MMS), MedHOK, which is expected
to provide more real-time reporting of utilization data.

CFO Raleigh closed stating that Health Care costs and Administrative Expenses were
slightly under budget.

Page 2b-8a and 2b-17 were provided; the first graphs the weekly claims inventory for
2013 and the later Member pharmacy utilization.

Committee Member Glyer moved to accept and file the CEO Report and the Unaudited
August Financials. Committee Member Juarez seconded. The motion carried.
Approved 4-0.

3. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

a. State of California Contract — Updated Capitation Rates
CFO Raleigh reported that the State has provided the new rate package. FY 2012-13
rates have been finalized, but pending approval of CMS. FY 2013-14 rates have been
updated; however, the package is still being analyzed by staff. GCHP will incorporate
the final FY 2012-13 rates into the audit to reflect an additional $4 million of revenue for
FY 2012-13 results, which will also result in an increase in reported TNE.

CLOSED SESSION

Legal Counsel Kierstyn Schreiner explained the purpose of the Closed Session items.

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION

The Committee adjourned to Closed Session at 3:49 p.m. regarding the following:
Existing Litigation Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 Lucas v.
Regional Government Services et al, VCSC Case No. 56-2013-00432444-CU-
CE-VTA

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION

The Regular Meeting reconvened at 4:06 p.m.

Legal Counsel Kierstyn Schreiner announced that there was no reportable action.

GCHP Executive / Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
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COMMENTS FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Committee Member Juarez stated that he spoke with officials at the Fair Political
Practices Commission (FPPC) and they have not heard of “eight steps” regarding
conflicts of interest that legal counsel spoke of at the September Commission Meeting.

ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 4:08 p.m.

GCHP Executive / Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
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GOld Coast www.goldcoasthealthplan.org
c=s; Health Plan-

A Public Entity

AGENDA ITEM 2b
To:  Gold Coast Health Plan Executive / Finance Committee
From: Michelle Raleigh, Chief Financial Officer
Date: November 7, 2013

Re: September, 2013 Financials (Unaudited)

SUMMARY

Staff is presenting the attached September, 2013 financial statements (unaudited) of Gold
Coast Health Plan (Plan) for review by the Executive / Finance Committee. Staff also requests
the Executive / Finance Committee to recommend approval of the September, 2013 financial
statements to the Plan’s Commission.

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION
The Plan has prepared the September 2013 financial package (unaudited), including
balance sheets, income statements and statements of cash flows.

FISCAL IMPACT

On a year-to-date basis, the Plan’s net income is approximately $4.0 million compared to
$3.1 million assumed in the budget. These operating results have contributed to a Tangible
Net Equity (TNE) level of approximately $11.7 million, which exceeds budget of $8.0 million
(by nearly $3.7 million).

The September TNE level is approximately $765,000 above the phased-in TNE
requirement as of September 30, 2013 of $10.9 million (68% of $16.1 million). This is the
first time the Plan has exceeded the phased-in TNE level since the Financial Corrective
Action Plan was issued in October 2012.

Other items to note include:
Membership - The Plan’s September membership was 120,867 and exceeded
budget by 781 members. Membership mix for September, on percentage basis, was

the same as August’'s membership.

Revenue — September net revenue was $28.5 million or $1.1 million better than
budget of $27.4 million. On a per-member-per-month (PMPM) basis, net revenue

2220 East Gonzales Road, Suite 200, Oxnard, Ca 93036 | Member Services: 888-301-1228 | Fax: 805-981-5314
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was $236.49 PMPM compared to the budget of $228.49 PMPM. The Plan has
made the following adjustments to the September revenue:

e Community Adult Based Services (CBAS) — The State has recently confirmed
that the Plan will continue to receive funds comparable to historical
reimbursement levels for this benefit. September’s revenue includes an
accrual of $1.7 million to reflect the proper CBAS revenue for July — August,
as well as recognizing $0.8 million for the current month’s estimated CBAS
revenue.

e Adjustments to draft FY2013-14 State Capitation Rates — In the FY2013-14
draft rate package received by the Plan, the State made a reduction to the
rates for certain program changes. This preliminary information suggested an
approximate 2% rate reduction, and the Plan has set up a reserve for this
potential rate reduction. Staff is working with DHCS to verify their
understanding of the draft FY2013-14 rates.

Health Care Costs — Health care costs for September were $24.8 million or
approximately $568,000 above budget. On a PMPM basis, reported health care
costs for September were $205.24 versus a budgeted amount of $201.84.

Please also note the following for September health care costs:

¢ A high-cost claim for a provider performing a transplant procedure was paid in
October, but for an earlier month of service, and amounted to approximately
$1.8 million (gross of anticipated recovery due from reinsurance). The amount
was added to claims reserves in September.

e The incurred but not paid (IBNP) methodology has been further refined for the
TLIC population with the expectation that their health care expenses would be
less on a PMPM basis than the Plan’s traditional population. This refinement
resulted in claims expenses being shifted from one category of service to
another. For example, the long term care claims expense has been reduced
since these services are not expected to be provided to the TLIC population.
Please note that these adjustments were made in the budgeted amounts as
well.

e As previously discussed, one of the Plan’s major providers implemented a
new Electronic Health Records (EHR) system which has led to changes in the
Plan’s claims volume over the last three months. Therefore, the Plan has
estimated additional pending claims in developing the IBNP.

Administrative Expenses - For the month, overall operational costs were
approximately $271,000 or $2.13 PMPM above budget. The main reasons for the
variance were:

2220 East Gonzales Road, Suite 200, Oxnard, Ca 93036 | Member Services: 888-301-1228 | Fax: 805-981-5314
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e Reflecting an estimated accrual for ACS claims processing fees related to TLIC
members. The ACS administrative support dollars associated with the TLIC
enroliment had not been billed until the Healthy Families program fully
transitioned to GCHP in August.

¢ Incurring higher than budgeted consulting services, primarily for the State
monitor.

These increases were partially offset with savings from lower than forecasted
personnel costs due to differences in timing of new hires versus that projected in the
budget and delays in the occurrence of certain expected expenditures (e.g., Xerox
SOC-1 audit, printing and mailings).

Cash + Medi-Cal Receivable - the Plan continues to monitor its cash balance and is
continuing with cash management programs that began in February 2013. The total
of Cash and Medi-Cal Premium Receivable balances was $68.7 million as of
September 30, or $9.6 million better than a budgeted level of $59.1 million.

Fixed Assets — The Plan is continuing with the installment of its new Medical
Management System (MMS). The expected cost of the MMS was $1.43 million as
approved by the Commission in June 2013. Costs incurred to date for the project
are approximately $759,000.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff proposes that the Gold Coast Health Plan Executive / Finance Committee approve
and accept the September 2013 financial package and recommend approval by the full
Commission at the November 18, 2013 Commission meeting.

CONCURRENCE
N/A

Attachments
September, 2013 Financial Package (unaudited)
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Income Statement Monthly Trend

2013 Actual Monthly Trend

2014 Actual Monthly Trend

Current Month

APR 2013 MAY 2013 JUN 2013 JUL 2013 AUG 2013 SEP 2013 Variance
Actual Budget Fav/(Unfav)
Membership (includes retro members) 104,683 105,635 106,193 105,880 120,332 120,867 120,086 781
Revenue:
Premium $ 26,032,054 $ 26,048,832 $ 29,108,295 | $ 27,686,491 §$ 27,789,352 | $ 29,602,003 $ 27,521,553 $ 2,080,450
Reserve for Rate Reduction 1,785,047 - 1,180,078 - - (129,202) 129,202
MCO Premium Tax - - - (1,053,211)  (1,110,416),  (1,068,828) - (1,068,828)
Total Net Premium 27,817,101 26,048,832 30,288,373 26,633,279 26,678,936 28,533,175 27,392,351 1,140,824
Other Revenue:
Interest Income 7,579 7,203 8,594 9,195 7,304 11,819 8,256 3,562
Miscellaneous Income 38,333 573,518 38,333 38,333 38,333 38,333 38,333 0
Total Other Revenue 45,912 580,721 46,927 47,529 45,637 50,152 46,589 3,563
Total Revenue 27,863,013 26,629,553 30,335,300 26,680,808 26,724,574 28,583,327 27,438,940 1,144,387
Medical Expenses:
Capitation (PCP, Specialty, NEMT & Visic 1,274,651 1,226,446 1,254,306 1,270,073 1,507,335 1,533,277 1,637,117 103,840
Incurred Claims:
Inpatient 4,422 556 5,955,342 6,185,239 4,850,263 4,512,661 5,531,725 4,383,586 (1,148,139)
LTC/SNF 6,404,450 5,438,652 5,774,127 6,128,764 7,333,312 6,003,374 6,880,907 877,533
Outpatient 2,682,417 1,803,363 2,132,380 2,882,860 2,955,457 2,281,073 2,768,250 487,177
Laboratory and Radiology 225,582 158,267 126,783 222,454 113,377 96,573 93,378 (3,195)
Emergency Room Facility Services 521,965 430,333 506,334 745,797 497,008 803,936 772,753 (31,183)
Physician Specialty Services 2,026,032 2,245,622 2,929,617 2,033,957 1,479,169 1,725,887 1,854,331 128,444
Pharmacy 3,626,289 3,819,028 3,092,352 3,126,910 3,253,505 3,172,116 3,260,456 88,340
Other Medical Professional 216,345 83,856 84,601 169,903 118,201 249,684 122,796 (126,888)
Other Medical Care Expenses - - 755 - - 1,621 - (1,621)
Other Fee For Service Expense 1,489,453 1,497,072 1,524,389 1,137,610 1,235,873 2,100,151 1,505,480 (594,671)
Transportation 73,499 71,310 60,991 40,124 35,404 178,553 77,195 (101,358)
Total Claims 21,688,588 21,502,845 22,417,569 21,338,642 21,533,967 22,144,693 21,719,131 (425,562)
Medical & Care Management Expense 894,013 722,529 732,777 742,126 730,967 746,163 698,440 (47,723)
Reinsurance 26,355 70,711 (368,913), 259,745 258,884 277,448 183,732 (93,716)
Claims Recoveries (484,211) (610,167) (213,342) (180,775) (458,563) 104,688 - (104,688)
Sub-total 436,157 183,072 150,522 821,096 531,288 1,128,300 882,172 (246,127)
Total Cost of Health Care 23,399,396 22,912,363 23,822,397 23,429,811 23,572,589 24,806,270 24,238,421 (567,849)
Contribution Margin 4,463,617 3,717,190 6,512,903 3,250,997 3,151,984 3,777,057 3,200,519 576,538
General & Administrative Expenses:
Salaries and Wages 464,103 600,314 731,003 562,828 420,641 453,818 515,454 61,636
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 113,969 108,592 199,544 123,309 112,105 114,103 131,825 17,722
Total Travel and Training 5,140 13,746 2,712 3,630 5,840 10,686 23,934 13,248
Outside Service - ACS 892,178 945,040 924,744 852,085 880,703 1,190,847 959,836 (231,012)
Qutside Services - Other 99,755 31,920 26,808 16,447 49,938 33,271 22,455 (10,816)
Accounting & Actuarial Services 33,046 51,270 61,489 44,003 20,164 46,568 53,333 6,766
Legal Expense 37,957 46,299 80,775 57,931 26,462 54,932 30,400 (24,532)
Insurance 9,245 10,516 7,677 11,838 9,972 12,517 10,792 (1,725)
Lease Expense - Office 26,080 25,980 7,937 25,980 28,480 28,480 25,980 (2,500)
Consulting Services Expense 286,436 443,743 229,676 172,165 201,612 264,998 140,638 (124,360)
Translation Services 1,125 4,610 3,672 4,878 2,788 2,778 2,967 189
Advertising and Promotion Expense - 1,050 - 4,080 14,120 - 11,460 11,460
General Office Expenses 171,615 71,628 83,271 63,357 88,394 77,654 117,335 39,682
Depreciation & Amortization Expense 3,836 3,648 11,407 5,235 5,235 6,492 6,864 372
Printing Expense 5,445 3,672 12,974 2,628 1,418 5,605 5,228 (377)
Shipping & Postage Expense 10,933 179 2,120 41 219 1,016 2,725 1,709
Interest Exp 24,186 1,180 17,120 17,933 24,076 37,708 9,425 (28,283)
Total G & A Expenses 2,185,050 2,363,386 2,402,927 1,968,367 1,892,167 2,341,473 2,070,651 (270,822)
Net Income / (Loss) $ 2,278,567 $ 1,353,803 $ 4,109,976 | $ 1,282,629 $ 1,259,818 | $ 1,435584 $ 1,129,868 $ 305,716
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PMPM Income Statement Comparison

Members (Member/Months)

Revenue:
Premium
Reserve for Rate Reduction
MCO Premium Tax

Total Net Premium

Other Revenue:
Interest Income
Miscellaneous Income
Total Other Revenue

Total Revenue

Medical Expenses:
Capitation

Incurred Claims:
Inpatient
LTC/SNF
Outpatient
Laboratory and Radiology
Emergency Room Facility Services
Physician Specialty Services
Pharmacy
Other Medical Professional
Other Medical Care Expenses
Other Fee For Service Expense
Transportation FFS

Total Claims

Medical & Care Management
Reinsurance
Claims Recoveries

Sub-total

Total Cost of Health Care

Contribution Margin

Administrative Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Total Travel and Training
Outside Service - ACS
Outside Services - Other
Accounting & Actuarial Services
Legal Expense
Insurance
Lease Expense -Office
Consulting Services Expense
Translation Services
Advertising and Promotion Expense
General Office Expenses
Depreciation & Amortization Expense
Printing Expense
Shipping & Postage Expense
Interest Exp

Total Administrative Expenses

Net Income / (Loss)

2013 Actual Monthly Trend 2014 Actual Monthly Trend | Sep'13 Month-To-Date Variance
APR 2013 MAY 2013 JUN 2013 JUL 2013 AUG 2013 Actual Budget Fav/(Unfav)
101,741 105,635 106,193 105,880 120,332 120,867 120,086 781
248.68 246.59 274.11 261.49 230.94 244.91 229.18 15.73
17.05 - 11.11 - - - (1.08) 1.08
- - - (9.95) (9.23) (8.84) - (8.84)
265.73 246.59 285.22 251.54 221.71 236.07 228.11 7.97
0.07 0.07 0.08 0.09 0.06 0.10 0.07 0.03
0.37 5.43 0.36 0.36 0.32 0.32 0.32 (0.00)
0.44 5.50 0.44 0.45 0.38 0.41 0.46 (0.05)
266.17 252.09 285.66 251.99 222.09 236.49 228.49 7.99
12.18 11.61 11.81 12.00 12.53 12.69 13.63 (0.95)
42.25 56.38 58.25 45.81 37.50 45.77 36.50 (9.26)
61.18 51.49 54.37 57.88 60.94 49.67 57.30 7.63
25.62 17.07 20.08 27.23 24.56 18.87 23.05 4.18
215 1.50 1.19 2.10 0.94 0.80 0.78 (0.02)
4.99 4.07 4.77 7.04 4.13 6.65 6.43 (0.22)
19.35 21.26 27.59 19.21 12.29 14.28 15.44 1.16
34.64 36.15 29.12 29.53 27.04 26.24 27.15 0.91
2.07 0.79 0.80 1.60 0.98 2.07 1.02 (1.04)
- - 0.01 - - 0.01 - (0.01)
14.23 1417 14.35 10.74 10.27 17.38 12.54 (4.84)
0.70 0.68 0.57 0.38 0.29 1.48 0.64 (0.83)
207.18 203.56 211.10 201.54 178.95 183.22 180.86 (2.35)
8.54 6.84 6.90 7.01 6.07 6.17 5.82 (0.36)
0.25 0.67 (3.47) 245 2.15 2.30 1.53 (0.77)
(4.63) (5.78) (2.01) (1.71) (3.81) 0.87 - (0.87)
417 1.73 1.42 7.75 4.42 9.34 8.72 (0.62)
223.53 216.90 224.33 221.29 195.90 205.24 201.84 (3.39)
42.64 35.19 61.33 30.70 26.19 31.25 26.65 4.60
443 5.68 6.88 5.32 3.50 3.75 4.29 0.54
1.09 1.03 1.88 1.16 0.93 0.94 1.10 0.15
0.05 0.13 0.03 0.03 0.05 0.09 0.20 0.11
8.52 8.95 8.71 8.05 7.32 9.85 7.99 (1.86)
0.95 0.30 0.25 0.16 0.41 0.28 0.19 (0.09)
0.32 0.49 0.58 0.42 0.17 0.39 0.44 0.06
0.36 0.44 0.76 0.55 0.22 0.45 0.25 (0.20)
0.09 0.10 0.07 0.11 0.08 0.10 0.09 (0.01)
0.25 0.25 0.07 0.25 0.24 0.24 0.22 (0.02)
2.74 4.20 2.16 1.63 1.68 2.19 1.17 (1.02)
0.01 0.04 0.03 0.05 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.00
- 0.01 - 0.04 0.12 - 0.10 0.10
1.64 0.68 0.78 0.60 0.73 0.64 0.98 0.33
0.04 0.03 0.11 0.05 0.04 0.05 0.06 0.00
0.05 0.03 0.12 0.02 0.01 0.05 0.04 (0.00)
0.10 0.00 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.02 0.01
0.23 0.01 0.16 0.17 0.20 0.31 0.08 (0.23)
20.87 22.37 22.63 18.59 15.72 19.37 17.24 (2.13)
21.77 12.82 38.70 12.11 10.47 11.88 9.41 2.47
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Comparative Balance Sheet

9/30/13 8/31/13 7/131/13 6/30/13
ASSETS
Current Assets
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 34,331,717 $85,684,442 $24,277,962 $ 50,707,852
Medi-Cal Receivable 34,315,221 5,637,672 35,230,747 7.543,835
Provider Receivable 543,912 1,030,614 914,174 1,161,379
Other Receivables 196,943 196,032 195,116 300,397
Total Accounts Receivable 35.056.076 6.864.319 36,340,038 9,005.611
Total Prepaid Accounts 1,389,660 1,176,495 1,226,549 351,145
Total Other Current Assets 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Total Current Assets $ 70,787.453 $ 93,735,256 $ 61,854,548 $ 60,074,607
Total Fixed Assets 986,207 615,332 236,494 230,913
Total Assets $ 71,773,660 $ 94,350,588 $ 62,091,042 $ 60,305,520
LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE

Current Liabilities
Incurred But Not Reported $ 33,793,228 $ 34,529,652 $ 33,171,805 $ 29,901,103
Claims Payable 11,193,958 8,633,379 5,648,707 9,748,676
Capitation Payable 1,265,100 1,250,713 1,015,278 1,002,623
Accrued Premium Reduction - - - -
Accounts Pavyable 491,915 1,466,215 2,000,411 1,693,432
Accrued ACS 1,252,499 1,214,024 1,191,571 422,138
Accrued RGS - - - -
Accrued Expenses 727,856 26,052,342 522,166 477,477
Accrued Premium Tax 9,692,383 9,252,398 7,513,140 7,286,494
Accrued Interest Payable 18,546 15,920 12,869 9,712
Current Portion of Deferred Revenue 460,000 460,000 460,000 460,000
Accrued Payroll Expense 358,882 353,902 654,538 605,937
Current Portion Of Long Term Debt - - - 41,667
Total Current Liabilities $ 59,254,367 $ 83,228,546 $ 52,190,484 $ 51,649,258
Long-Term Liabilities

Deferred Revenue - Long Term Portion 805,000 843,333 881,667 920,000

Notes Payable 7,200,000 7,200,000 7,200,000 7,200,000

Total Long-Term Liabilities 8,005,000 8,043,333 8,081,667 8,120,000

Total Liabilities $ 67,259,367 $ 91,271,879 $ 60,272,151 $ 59,769,258
Beginning Fund Balance 536,262 536,262 536,262 (6,031,881)
Net Income Current Year 3,978,031 2,542,447 1,282,629 6,568,143
Total Fund Balance 4,514,293 3,078,709 1,818,891 536,262
Total Liabilities & Fund Balance $ 71,773,660 $ 94,350,588 $ 62,091,042 $ 60,305,520
FINANCIAL INDICATORS
Current Ratio 1.19:1 1.13:1 1.19:1 1.16:1
Days Cash on Hand 38 101 29 27
Days Cash + State Capitation Receivable 76 108 70 63
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Income Statement

For The Three Months Ended September 30, 2013

Membership (includes retro members)

Revenue:
Premium
Reserve for Rate Reduction
MCO Premium Tax

Total Net Premium

Other Revenue:
Interest Income
Miscellaneous Income
Total Other Revenue

Total Revenue

Medical Expenses:
Capitation

Incurred Claims*
Inpatient
LTC/SNF
Outpatient
Laboratory and Radiology
Emergency Room Facility Services
Physician Specialty Services
Pharmacy
Other Medical Professional
Other Medical Care Expenses
Other Fee For Service Expense
Transportation

Total Claims

Medical & Care Management Expense

Reinsurance
Claims Recoveries
Sub-total

Total Cost of Health Care

Contribution Margin

General & Administrative Expenses:
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Total Travel and Training
Outside Service - ACS
Outside Services - Other
Accounting & Actuarial Services
Legal Expense
Insurance
Lease Expense - Office
Consulting Services Expense
Translation Services
Advertising and Promotion Expense
General Office Expenses
Depreciation & Amortization Expense
Printing Expense
Shipping & Postage Expense
Interest Expense

Total G & A Expenses

Net Income / (Loss)

Sep'13 Year-To-Date Variance
Actual Budget Fav/(Unfav)
347,079 345,104 1,975
85,077,846 $ 81,370,529 $ 3,707,317
- (387,510) 387,510
(3,232,455) - (3,232,455)
81,845,391 80,983,019 862,372
28,318 24,411 3,907
115,000 114,999 1
143,318 139,410 3,908
81,988,709 81,122,429 866,280
4,310,685 4,573,743 263,058
14,894,649 13,069,884 (1,824,765)
19,465,450 20,515,776 1,050,326
8,119,390 8,253,677 134,287
432,404 278,412 (153,992)
2,046,741 2,304,001 257,260
5,239,013 5,528,782 289,769
9,652,531 9,601,112 48,581
537,788 366,123 (171,665)
1,621 - (1,621)
4,473,634 4,488,665 15,032
254,081 230,162 (23,919)
65,017,302 64,636,594 (380,708)
2,219,256 2,125,316 (93,940)
796,077 528,009 (268,068)
(534,649) - 534,649
2,480,684 2,653,325 172,642
71,808,671 71,863,663 54,992
10,180,038 9,258,767 921,271
1,437,287 1,474,440 37,153
349,517 379,081 29,563
20,156 66,087 45,931
2,923,635 2,808,720 (114,915)
99,655 126,103 26,447
110,734 155,000 44,266
139,325 91,200 (48,125)
34,327 32,376 (1,951)
82,940 77,940 (5,000)
638,775 484,914 (153,861)
10,444 8,821 (1,623)
18,200 40,880 22,680
229,404 309,661 80,256
16,962 20,342 3,380
9,651 35,516 25,865
1,276 18,975 17,699
79,718 27,701 (52,018)
6,202,007 6,157,755 (44,252)
3,978,031 $ 3,101,011 $ 877,019
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Statement of Cash Flows - Monthly

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Collected Premium
Miscellaneous Income
State Pass Through Funds

Paid Claims
Medical & Hospital Expenses
Pharmacy
Capitation
Reinsurance of Claims
HQAF Funds Distributed
Paid Administration
MCO Tax Received / (Paid)
Net Cash Provided/ (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flow From Investing/Financing Activities
Proceeds from Line of Credit
Repayments on Line of Credit
Net Acquisition of Property/Equipment
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Investing/Financing

Net Cash Flow

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Beg. of Period)
Cash and Cash Equivalents (End of Period)

Adjustment to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Flow
Net (Loss) Income
Depreciation & Amortization
Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables
Decrease/(Increase) in Prepaids & Other Current Assets
(Decrease)/Increase in Payables
(Decrease)/Increase in Other Liabilities
Change in MCO Tax Liability
Changes in Claims and Capitation Payable
Changes in IBNR

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

SEP'13 AUG'13 JUL '3 JUN'13
$ 924454 $ 56,847,242 §$ - $52,138,834
11,819 542,489 9,195 8,594

- 25595240 - 34,346,474
(16,704,362)  (13,601,172)  (18,926,200) (17,277,826)
(3553463)  (3,569,832)  (2,994,857)  (4,009,168)
(1518,891)  (1,274,000)  (1,257,418)  (1,162,302)
(277,448) (258,884) (259,745) (240,430)
(25,595,240) - (34,346,474)
(4263,381)  (3,119,372)  (2,163,484)  (2,616,623)

- 628,843 (826,566) 829,564
(50,976,513) 61,790,554  (26,419,075) 27,670,643
(376,213) (384,074) (10,815) (31,026)
(376,213) (384,074) (10,815) (31,026)

$ (51,352,725) $ 61,406,480 $ (26,429,890) $ 27,639,617

85,684,442 24,277,962 50,707,852 23,068,235
34,331,717 85,684,442 24,277,962 50,707,852

$ (51,352,725) $ 61,406,480 $ (26,429,890) $ 27,639,617

1,435,584 1,259,818 1,282,629 4,109,976
6,492 5,235 5,235 11,407
(28,192,911) 29475719  (27,334,427) 22,788,941
(213,165) 50,054 (875,404) 769,972
(26,252,704) 24,720,848 1,172,860  (1,578,838)
(38,333) (38,333) (80,000) (121,667)
439,985 1,739,259 226,645 1,433,012
2,574,965 3,220,107 (4,087,314) 1,913,029
(736,424) 1,357,848 3,270,701  (1,655,189)
(50,976,513) 61,790,554  (26,419,075) 27,670,643

$ (50,976,513) $ 61,790,554 $ (26,419,075) $ 27,670,643
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GOld Coast www.goldcoasthealthplan.org
c=s; Health Plan-

A Public Entity

AGENDA ITEM 2c
To:  Gold Coast Health Plan Executive / Finance Committee
From: Michelle Raleigh, Chief Financial Officer
Date: November 7, 2013

Re: FY 2012-13 Audit Results

SUMMARY

Staff is presenting the attached results of the FY 2012-13 (07/01/12-06/30/13) financial
audit of Gold Coast Health Plan (Plan) for review by the Executive / Finance Committee.
Staff also requests the Executive / Finance Committee to recommend approval of the

FY 2012-13 financial audit to the Plan’s Commission.

A summary of this is audit reflects:
1. Auditor’s report reflects an “unqualified opinion” (no issues that would impact the
financials),
2. One large, positive audit adjustment from information received from DHCS after the
end of the audit period, and
3. Improvement on the internal control-related findings.

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION

The Plan engaged McGladrey & Pullen, LLP (McGladrey) to perform a financial audit for
the FY 2012-13 year. McGladrey had also performed financial audits for the Plan for the
prior two fiscal years. Performing an annual audit is a requirement of the Plan’s contract
with the State of California’s Department of Health Care Services.

The primary purpose of the audit is for stakeholders to gain assurance that the Plan’s
financial statements are properly presented, are free of material misstatements and have
been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. The
auditor’s report for FY 2012-13 resulted in an unqualified opinion; no issues were reported
that would have an adverse effect on the Plan’s financial results.

2220 East Gonzales Road, Suite 200, Oxnard, Ca 93036 | Member Services: 888-301-1228 | Fax: 805-981-5314
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A secondary (but important) purpose of the audit is to test and comment on the Plan’s
design, implementation and maintenance of a system of internal controls that have a
relationship with financial reporting. McGladrey’s report contained no Material Weaknesses
in internal controls for FY 201-13, as compared to three in the preceding year. Significant
Deficiencies were identified in three areas, but the comments largely reflect issues that had
been identified earlier in the year and are in the process of being addressed.

The auditor’s findings resulted in only two adjustments that affected net income (resulting in
a net increase) and related to timing issues for claims payments and processing. This is a
significant improvement over the prior year’s six significant adjustments.

FISCAL IMPACT

For FY 2012-13 the following audit adjustments were made to the unaudited 06/30/13
financial statements:

Adjustment Impact on
Financial
Statements
Identified by Plan Management — Revenue Adjustments
e Final State Rates $ 4,087,976
e MCO Tax 7,337,759
Total Increase in Revenue $11,425,735
Identified by Auditors — Health Care Expense Adjustments
e Claim processed and accrued in month following close $ 43,046
e Voided claim payment recorded after year-end close 109,908
Total Decrease in Health Care Expenses $ (66,862)
Gross Increase in Operating Income $11,492,597
Increase in Administrative Expense (MCO Tax Reclassification) (7,337,759)
Increase in Net Income $_4,154,838

Additional audit adjustment items are presentation reclassifications, meaning the auditors
recommend a different way to group the information on the financial statements. These
items do not impact the ending financial position of the Plan.

2220 East Gonzales Road, Suite 200, Oxnard, Ca 93036 | Member Services: 888-301-1228 | Fax: 805-981-5314

www.goldcoasthealthplan.org
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The increase in net income also impacts the Plan’s ending tangible net equity (TNE)
position at 6/30/13:

Unaudited TNE at 06/30/13: $ 7,736,261
Audit Adjustments: 4,154,838
Audited TNE at 06/30/13: $11,891,100

Therefore, the Plan exceeds the TNE requirement at 06/30/13 of $10,974,140 by
approximately $916,960.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff proposes that the Executive / Finance Committee approve and accept the FY 2012-13
audit results.

CONCURRENCE
N/A

Attachments

Results of FY 2012-13 Audit Presentation

Audited Financial Statements (McGladrey)

Report to Executive / Finance Committee (McGladrey)

2220 East Gonzales Road, Suite 200, Oxnard, Ca 93036 | Member Services: 888-301-1228 | Fax: 805-981-5314
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McGladrey LLP

801 Nicollet Mall

West Tower Ste 1100

Minneapolis, MN 5§5402-2526

arey 0 612.332.4300
www.mcgladrey.com
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October 30, 2013

Ms. Michelle Raleigh

Chief Financial Officer

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/
dba Gold Coast Health Plan

2220 E. Gonzales Road, Suite 200

Oxnard, CA 93036

Dear Ms. Raleigh:

In accordance with your request, we are attaching the accompanying PDF file, which contains an
electronic final version of the financial statements of Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care
Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP or the P!an) for the years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012. We understand that your request for the electronic copy has been made as a matter of
convenience. You understand that electronic transmissions are not entirely secure and that it is possible
for confidential financial information to be intercepted by others.

These financial statements and our report(s) on them are not to be modified in any manner. This final
version supersedes all prior drafts. Any preliminary draft version of the financial statements previously
provided to you in an electronic format should be deleted from your computer, and al! printed copies of
any superseded preliminary draft versions should likewise be destroyed.

Professional standards and our firm policies require that we perform certain additional procedures
whenever our reports are included, or we are named as accountants, auditors or “experts,” in a document
used in a public or private offering of equity or debt securities. Accordingly, as provided for and agreed to
in the terms of our arrangement letter, GCHP will not include our reports, or otherwise make reference to
us, in any public or private securities offering without first obtaining our consent. Any request to consent is
also a matter for which separate arrangements will be necessary. After obtaining our consent, GCHP also
agrees to provide us with printer's proofs or masters of such offering documents for our review and
approval before printing, and with a copy of the final reproduced materia!l for our approvatl before it is
distributed. In the event our auditor/client relationship has been terminated when GCHP seeks such
consent, we will be under no obligation to grant such consent or approval.

Thank you for the opportunity to serve you.

Sincerely,

ST

Steven J. Draxler, Partner
612.376.9590

wpd
Attachment

Member of the RSM Intemnatlonal network of independent accounting, tax and consulting firms. 2¢-21
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The intent of the Management's Discussion and Analysis is to provide readers with an overview of the
Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan’'s (GCHP or the Plan)
financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. This overview is provided in
conjunction with the Plan’s fiscal 2013 (July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013) audit. Readers should review
this overview in conjunction with GCHP’s financia! statements and accompanying notes to the financial
statements to enhance their understanding of the financia! performance.

GOLD COAST HEALTH PLAN OVERVIEW

On June 2, 2009, the Ventura County Board of Supervisors approved the implementation of a county-
organized health system (COHS) model to transition the Ventura County Medi-Ca! members from a fee-
for-service model to a managed care model. Ordinance 4409 (April 2010) established the Ventura County
Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission as an oversight entity. The Commission’s 11 members oversee a
single plan—Gold Coast Health Plan—to serve Ventura County Medi-Cal beneficiaries. The year ended
June 30, 2012, was Gold Coast's first full year of operation as a health plan. Hence, this document
provides an overview of the Plan's second year of operations and comparisons to year one of operations.

As a COHS, the Plan has an exclusive contract (the Contract) with the State of California (the State)
Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) to arrange for the provision of health care services to
Ventura County’s approximately 106,000 Medi-Cal beneficiaries at June 30, 2013. The Plan receives
virtually 100 percent of its revenue in the form of capitation from the State of California.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of financia! statements and notes to those statements, which reflect GCHP's
financia! position and results of operations for the fisca! years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. The

financial statements of GCHP include the balance sheet, statement of revenues, expenses and changes
in net position (deficit), statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements.

¢ The balance sheet includes all of GCHP's assets and liabilities, using the accrual basis of accounting.

» The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position (deficit) presents the results of
operating activities during the fiscal year and the resulting increase (decrease) in net position.

+ The statement of cash flows reports the net cash provided by operating activities, as well as other
sources, and uses of cash from investing, capital and related financing activities.

The following discussion and analysis addresses GCHP's overall program activities.

2c-24



Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, tota} assets were $64,528,000 and $63,514,000, respectively, and
total liabilities were $59,837,000 and $69,546,000, respectively.

s Current liabilities at June 30, 2013, were $51,717,000, compared with $68,166,000 at June 30, 2012,
a 24 percent decrease. Current liabilities included claim liabilities of $39,6560,000 and $62,969,000 at
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Plan's claim liability calculation for fiscal 2013 was based
on an improved methodology instituted during the year, which used historical payment experience
and takes into account other changes in operations to estimate reserves. The current methodology is
different from that used in fiscal year 2012 because of the availability of expanded claims payment
data and actuarial information.

o The Plan’s tota! net position increased by $10,723,000, or 177.8 percent, during fiscal 2013. This
increase in net position was attributable to results of operations and enabled the Plan to raise its net
position at June 30, 2013, to $4,691,000 from a net deficit of $6,032,000 at June 30, 2012.

Table 1—Condensed Balance Sheets as of June 30
(Dollars in Thousands)

Change From 2012
2013 2012 Amount Percentage
Assets
Current assets $ 64297 $ 63338 § 959 1.5%
Capita! assets, net 231 176 55 31.3%
Total assets $ 64528 $ 63514 § 1,014 1.6%
Liabilities
Current liabilities $ 517177 § 68,166 $ (16,449 (24.1)%
Line of credit 7.200 - 7,200 100.0%
Other liabilities 920 1,380 (460) (33.3)%
Total liabilities 59,837 69,546 (9,709) (14.0)%
Net Position (Deficit)
Invested in capita! assets 231 176 55 31.3%
Restricted—required tangible net equity 3,774 - 3,774 100.0%
Unrestricted net position (deficit) 686 (6,208) 6,894 111.1%
Total net position (deficit) 4,691 (6,032) 10,723 177.8%
Total liabilities and net position
(deficit) $ 64528 $ 63514 § 1,014 1.6%
2
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Contract with the DHCS required GCHP to meet and maintain a minimum leve! of tangible net equity
(TNE). TNE is defined as the excess of tota! assets over total! liabilities, excluding subordinated liabilities
and intangible assets. As prescribed by the Contract and California State statute, GCHP is following a
TNE phase-in plan whereby the Plan is required to meet 68 percent and 36 percent of the TNE
requirements at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Plan will be required to meet 100 percent of
the TNE requirements at June 30, 2014. At June 30, 2013, GCHP's actua! TNE was approximately
$11,891,000, versus a TNE deficit of approximately $6,032,000 at June 30, 2012. TNE requirements
require positive TNE amounts of approximately $10,974,000 and $6,037,000 for June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Therefore, the Plan has exceeded the required TNE levels at June 30, 2013.

GCHP has drawn on two subordinated lines of credit from the County of Ventura during fiscal 2013, for a
total of $7,200,000. The purpose of the lines of credit is to assist GCHP in meeting its TNE requirements.
Interest expense on the borrowed amounts is calculated based upon the Ventura County Treasury Pool
rate (approximately 0.498 percent at June 30, 2013). Accrued interest payable at June 30, 2013, was
approximately $9,700. Repayment of the borrowed amount and accrued interest is not required until
GCHP meets 100 percent of the minimum TNE and the County of Ventura has obtained written approval
from the DHCS to request repayment of the credit lines.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

As mentioned above, GCHP'’s fiscal 2013 operations and nonoperating expenses resulted in a
$10,723,000 increase in net position. The following table shows the changes in revenues and expenses
for 2013 compared to 2012, which was GCHP's first year of operations.

Table 2—Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Deficit) for
Fiscal Years Ended June 30
(Dollars in Thousands)

Change From 2012

2013 2012 Amount _ Percentage

Capitation revenues $ 319,147 $ 310,260 §$ 8,887 2.9%
Total operating revenues 319,147 310,260 8,887 2.9%
Provider capitation 11,159 7,535 3,624 48.1%
Claim payments to providers and facilities 224,185 239,056 (14,871) (6.2)%
Prescription drugs 41,118 36,022 5,096 14.1%
Other medical 7,557 6,069 1,488 24.5%
Reinsurance recoveries (6,374) (2,437) (3,937) 161.6%
Total health care expenses 277,645 286,245 (8,600) (3.0)%
Salaries, benefits and compensation 6,311 4,056 2,255 55.6%
Professional fees 15,217 12,835 2,382 18.6%
Genera! administrative fees 1,138 878 260 29.6%
Supplies, occupancy, insurance and other 386 232 154 66.4%
Premium tax 7,339 7,362 (23) (0.3)%
Depreciation 51 27 24 88.9%
Total administrative expenses 30,442 25,390 5,052 19.9%
Total operating expenses 308,087 311,635 (3,548) (1.1)%
Operating gain (loss) 11,060 (1,375) 12,435 904.4%
Interest income 114 169 (55) (32.5)%
Interest expense (451) (403) (48) (11.9Y%
Total nonoperating revenues and expenses (337) (234) (103) 44.0%
Increase (decrease) in net position (deficit) 10,723 (1,609) 12,332 766.4%
Total net position (deficit), beginning of year (6,032) (4,423) (1,609) (36.4)%
Total net position (deficit), end of year $ 4691 $ (6,032) $ 10,723 177.8%
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

ENROLLMENT, CAPITATION REVENUE AND HEALTH CARE EXPENSES

Enroliment

Enroliment is divided into aid categories, which correspond to specific rates of capitation to be received
by the Plan from the State. During fiscal 2013, the Plan served an average of 102,234 members per
month, compared to an average of 104,850 in fiscal 2012. The decreases in enroliment were largely the
result of a State policy change regarding the Plan’s responsibility for covering health care costs for
members that were deemed retroactively eligible for Medi-Cal. In fiscal 2012, the State allowed qualifying
members to enroll retroactively for a period of up to 12 months. The table below compares average
monthly membership by aid categories for fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012.

Table 3—Medi-Cal Enrollment by Aid Category
(Shown as Average Member Months)

Enrollment Category 2013 2012
Family/Adult 70,867 77,533
Aged 1,226 1,208
Disabled 7,938 8,002
Long-Term Care 72 73
Aged—Dual 8,900 9,362
Disabled—Dual 7,236 7,505
Long-Term Care—Dual 897 912
BCCTP 238 255
TLIC 4,860 -
Total average monthly enroliment 102,234 104,850

Significant aid categories are defined as follows: Family/Adult include families, children and poverty-level
members who qualify for the CalWORKs and TANF federal welfare programs. Aged includes individuals
who are 65 years of age and older who receive supplemental security income (SS!) checks, or are
medically needy if their income and resources are within the Medi-Cal limits. Disabled includes individuals
who met the criteria for disability set by the Social Security Administration and the State Program-
Disability and Adult Program Division. Long-Term Care includes frai!, elderly, nonelderly adults with
disabilities and children with developmental disabilities and other disabling conditions requiring long-term
care services. Breast and Cervical Cancer Treatment Program (BCCTP) provides cancer treatment for
eligible low-income California residents who are screened by the Cancer Detection Program: Every
Woman Counts (CDP:EWC) or Family Planning, Access, Care and Treatment (Family PACT) programs
and found to be in need of treatment for breast and/or cervical cancer. Targeted Low Income Children
(TLIC) refers to former Healthy Families Program (HFP) enrollees that began transitioning to Medi-Cal
(pursuant to Assembly Bill 1494), as allowed under federa! law, in January 2013. “Dual’ coverage refers
to enrollees who are eligible for both Medicare (part A, B or D) and Medi-Cal benefits.

Capitation Revenue

Revenue for fiscal 2013 was $319,147,000 (net of reinsurance premiums of $2,738,000), or 2.9 percent
greater than fiscal 2012, which is impacted primarily by shifts in membership mix and rate changes as
determined by the DHCS. {n addition, beginning in October 2012, the Plan was reimbursed by the DHCS
via a capitation rate paid for members qualifying for Community Based Adult Services (CBAS). Members
using CBAS are accounted for within the aid categories mentioned previously with capitation payments to
the Plan being recognized as revenue.
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Premium revenue (capitation received by the Plan from the State) is determined by rates set by the State
at the beginning of the plan year and generally are effective for the entire year. The State provided
updated rates during the fiscal year, which were not reduced for provider payment changes noted in
Assembly Bill (AB) 97. In June 2013, the State announced that there would be no financial consequences
resulting from AB 97 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. As such, the reserve previously established
for AB 97 of $1,914,000 was no longer needed and released.

The State finalized its budget effective July 1, 2013, and indicated that premium revenue continues to be
subject to a Managed Care Organization (MCO) tax of 2.35 percent for fiscal 2013.

Health Care Expenses

Aggregate health care expenses were $277,645,000 in fiscal 2013, compared to $286,245,000 in fiscal
2012. The Plan’s medical loss ratio, or health care expenses as a percent of operating revenues (net of
MCO taxes), was 87.0 percent in fiscal 2013, compared to 92.3 percent in fiscal 2012.

Note the following regarding the components of the health care expenses:

1. Provider capitation represents monthly payments for members assigned to primary care providers
who have agreed to accept risk to provide specific services (when needed) to their members. Rates
are fixed by contract and are generally known at the beginning of the fiscal year. Total provider
capitation increased by 48.1 percent from fiscal 2012 to fiscal 2013 due to:

a. An expanded capitation arrangement with one of the Plan’s major networks to also provide
specialty services under a capitated payment

b. A capitation contract with a vendor to provide vision benefits for all members (this contract went
into effect in mid fiscal 2012)

¢. A new capitation contract with a vendor to provide nonemergency transportation services for all
members effective in fiscal 2013

2. Estimated claims expense to providers on a fee-for-service basis decreased 6.2 percent from
$239,056,000 in fiscal 2012 to $224,185,000 in fiscal 2013. The decrease was due to a greater focus
on medical management efforts resulting in lower utilization of services, improved claims processing
operations, and enhanced claims recovery efforts.

3. Pharmacy costs were $5,096,000, or 14.1 percent greater in fiscal 2013 than in fiscal 2012. The
increase resulted from higher member utilization and unit cost of prescriptions. Fiscal 2013 utilization
increased from the prior year primarily due to fiscal 2012 utilization being lower than expected during
the first six months of operations as members and providers transitioned to a managed care benefit.
Unit costs increased by 12.4 percent for brand drugs and were flat for generic drugs. Generic drug
utilization increased from 82.6 percent to 86.4 percent in fiscal 2013 as compared to
fiscal 2012.

During June 2013, the Plan instituted a new fee schedule through the Pharmacy Benefit Manager for
the majority of generic drugs, resulting in an estimated reduction in pharmacy expense of $600,000
for the month of June 2013. These savings are expected to continue throughout fiscal 2014.

4. Reinsurance recoveries exceeded reinsurance premiums. Total reinsurance recoveries resulted in a
$6,374,000 reduction to health care expenses.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Tota! administrative expenses were approximately $30,442,000 in fisca! 2013, compared to $25,390,000
in fiscal 2012, for an increase of $5,052,000 as reflected in the following components:

1.

Personnel expenses (i.e., salaries, benefits and compensation) for fiscal 2013 were $6,311,000,
versus $4,056,000 for fiscal 2012. The increase was primarily due to personne! additions to support
the organization, both on a temporary and full-time basis. !n addition to supporting typical growth of a
new organization, the hiring of staff was in response to a directive contained in the Corrective Action
Plan or CAP (reference the Regulatory Action section following) issued to GCHP by the DHCS. The
CAP stated that the Plan needed to fill specific management positions, which was complied with by
the end of fiscal year 2013.

Professional fees for fiscal 2013 were $15,217,000, compared to $12,835,000 in fiscal 2012, for an
increase of $2,382,000. The increase was necessary to provide the Plan with assistance to perform
certain technical functions and specialized tasks provided by consultants for which the Plan could not
yet perform internally. Professional fees also include the consulting costs of the monitor appointed by
the State. The monitoring is expected to continue until such time as when GCHP has satisfactorily
met the terms set forth in the CAP with the DHCS.

General administrative expenses in fiscal 2013 were $1,524,000 and included occupancy, supplies
insurance and other operating expenses. The increase over $1,110,000 in fiscal 2012 was in support
of additiona! staff and expanded Plan management activities.

REGULATORY ACTION

As mentioned above, GCHP is required by the DHCS to maintain certain levels TNE. Regulatory TNE
levels are determined by formula and are based on specified percentages of revenue and medical
expenses. As a new plan, the requirement allows for a phase-in period in which the Plan was required to
meet 68 percent of calculated TNE at June 30, 2013. Driven by its operating performance as well as the
line-of-credit draws, the Ptan’s TNE at June 30, 2013, was approximately $11,891,000, which exceeded
the required TNE amount of $10,974,000.

Table 4—Tangible Net Equity (TNE)
(Dollars in Thousands)

June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012

Actua! TNE, beginning balance 3 (6,032) $ (4,423)

Change in net position 10,723 (1,609)
Note payable 7,200 -
Actual TNE, ending balance $ 11,891 § (6,032)
Required TNE position $ 10,974 § 6,037




McGladrey LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Commission

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/
dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Oxnard, CA

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care

Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP or the Plan), as of and for the years ended June 30,
2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise GHCP's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

As discussed in Note 3, the financial statements referred to above present only GCHP and do not purport
to, and do not, present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of Ventura
County, California, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal contro! relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financia! statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of GCHP as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related revenues, expenses and
changes in net position (deficit) and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the California Department of Health Care Services
(DHCS) requires that GCHP meet and maintain a minimum leve! of tangible net equity (TNE) and comply
with several other operational and reporting requirements. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, GCHP was out
of compliance with various operational and reporting requirements as outlined in the State's corrective
action plan. As of June 30, 2013, GCHP's TNE exceeded the required level, but was below the required
threshold at June 30, 2012. GCHP continues to work with DHCS in response to the corrective action plan
in order to achieve full compliance. While a corrective action plan has been developed and GCHP is
responsive to it, the ultimate resolution of these matters is not determinable at this time.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis on pages 1 through 6 be presented to supplement the financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

%&W e,

Minneapolis, Minnesota
October 30, 2013
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Balance Sheets
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Assets 2013 2012
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 50,817,760 $ 25,554,098
Accounts receivable:
Capitation receivable 11,683,076 28,534,938
Provider receivables, net of allowance of $1,086,155 and $245 452,
respectively 1,161,379 6,539,541
Reinsurance and other receivables, net of allowance of $-0- and
$166,346, respectively 300,398 2,148,270
Prepaid expenses and other assets 334,421 560,797
Total current assets 64,297,034 63,337,644
Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $77,685 and
$26,896, respectively 230,914 176,028
Total assets 64,527,948 63,513,672
Liabilities and Net Position (Deficit)
Current Liabilities
Medical claims liability and capitation payable:
Medical claims liability 39,649,779 62,968,509
Capitation payable 1,002,624 633,276
40,652,403 63,601,785
Accounts payable 1,751,421 886,715
Premium reserve - 1,914,155
Accrued implementation costs and administrative services - 500,000
Implementation advance, current 460,000 460,000
Accrued payroll and employee benefits 605,937 -
Accrued premium tax and other 8,247,087 802,900
Total current liabilities 51,716,848 68,165,555
Implementation Advance, less current portion 920,000 1,380,000
Line of Credit 7,200,000 -
Total liabilities 59,836,848 69,545,555
Commitments and Contingencies
Net Position (Deficit)
Net invested in capital assets 230,914 176,028
Restricted—required tangible net equity 3,774,000 -
Unrestricted net position (deficit) 686,186 (6,207,911)
Total net position (deficit) 4,691,100 (6,031,883)
Total liabilities and net position (deficit) $ 64527948 $ 63513672

See Notes to Financia! Statements.
10
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Deficit)

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013

2012

Operating revenues:

Capitation revenues (net of reinsurance premiums of $2,737,697 and

$1,108,585, respectively)
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Health care expenses:
Provider capitation
Claim payments to providers and facilities
Prescription drugs
Other medical
Reinsurance recoveries
Total health care expenses

Administrative expenses:
Salaries, benefits and compensation
Professional fees
General administrative fees
Supplies, occupancy, insurance and other
Premium tax
Depreciation
Total administrative expenses

Total operating expenses
Operating gain (loss)
Nonoperating revenues and expenses:
Interest income
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues and expenses
Increase (decrease) in net position (deficit)
Net position (deficit), beginning of year

Net position (deficit), end of year

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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$ 319,147,345

$ 310,260,446

319,147,345 310,260,446
11,159,035 7,534,863
224,184,527 239,056,472
41,118,154 36,022,296
7,557,496 6,068,910
(6,374,187) (2,437,453)
277,645,025 286,245,088
6,311,239 4,056,153
15,217,023 12,834,921
1,137,820 877,750
386,056 232,253
7,339,439 7,362,155
50,789 26,896
30,442,366 25,390,128
308,087,391 311,635,216
11,059,954 (1,374,770)
114,010 169,056
(450,981) (403,350)
(336,971) (234,294)
10,722,983 (1,609,064)
(6,031,883) (4,422,819)
4,691,100 (6,031,883)
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Capitation revenues received and other
Reinsurance premiums paid
Payments to providers and facilities
Payments of premium tax
Payments of administrative expenses
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchases of capital assets
Interest payments
Proceeds from line of credit
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing
activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest income
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of Operating Gain (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities
Operating gain (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating gain (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Medical claims liability
Accounts payable
Premium reserve
Implementation advance and accrued implementation costs
Accrued premium tax and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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2013 2012

$ 336,287,564 $ 284,748,247
(2,737,697) (1,108,585)
(293,368,373)  (231,331,114)
(604,579) (6,759,254)
(21,070,607)  (20,306,312)
18,506,308 25,242,982
(105,675) (115,287)
(450,981) (403,350)
7,200,000 -
6,643,344 (518,637)
114,010 169,056
114,010 169,056
25,263,662 24,893,401
25,554,098 660,697
$ 50817,760 $ 25554098
$ 11,059,954 $ (1,374,770)
50,789 26,896
24,077,896 (37,213,593)
226,376 (520,670)
(22,949,382) 63,601,785
864,706 839,338
(1,914,155) 1,914,155
(960,000) (960,000)
8,050,124 (1,070,159)

$ 18,506,308 $ 25242982
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization and Operations

Organizational structure: Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health
Plan (GCHP or the Plan) is a county-organized health system (COHS) organized to serve primarily
Medi-Cal beneficiaries in Ventura County, California. The formation of GCHP was approved by the Board
of Supervisors of the County of Ventura in December 2009 through the adoption of Ordinance No. 4409.

As a COHS, GCHP maintains an exclusive contract (the Contract) with the State of California Department
of Health Care Services (DHCS) to arrange for the provision of health care services to Ventura County’s
approximately 105,000 Medi-Cal beneficiaries. All of GCHP's revenues are earned from the State of
California (the State) in the form of capitation payments based on enroliment and capitation rates as
provided for in the State contract (the Contract). The Plan began providing services to Medi-Cal
beneficiaries in July 2011.

Note 2. Compliance With the DHCS and Restricted Net Position

GCHP is required to meet and maintain a minimum leve! of tangible net equity (TNE) as established by
the Contract. TNE is defined as the excess of total assets over total liabilities, excluding subordinated
liabifities and intangible assets. As prescribed by the Contract and California State Statute, GCHP is
following a TNE phase-in plan, whereby GCHP is required to meet 68 percent and 36 percent of the TNE
requirements at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Required and actual TNE are as follows:

June 30
2013 2012
Actua! TNE, beginning balance $ (6,032) $ (4,423)
Change in net position 10,723 (1,609)
Note payable 7,200 -
Actual TNE, ending balance $ 11,891 §$ (6,032)
Required TNE 3 10,974 §$ 6,037

In prior years, GCHP was not able to maintain compliance with certain operational requirements of the
Contract. As a result of this noncompliance, DHCS put a corrective action plan in place that addresses
key areas of noncompliance_in the TNE and other requirements, such as improving plan staffing, filling
certain key positions, improving claims processing capabilities, developing information technology
resources, and timely and accurately filing paid claims and encounter data with the DHCS. The DHCS is
monitoring GCHP's financial status and compliance with operational and reporting requirements.

In the event the Plan does not comply with these requirements, the DHCS has the authority to take
actions for noncompliance with the requirements imposed upon the Plan. Such actions include, but are
not limited to, imposition of sanctions upon the Plan, assessment of damages, installation of temporary
management, or termination of the contract with the DHCS to arrange for the provision of health care
services to Ventura County’s beneficiaries.
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2. Compliance With the DHCS and Restricted Net Position (Continued)

During 2013, GCHP made substantial progress toward full compliance with the DHCS operational and
reporting requirements, including becoming TNE compliant as of June 30, 2013. The ability of GCHP to
continue as a going concern is dependent on the results of these matters. The financial statements have
been prepared on the going concern basis, which assumes the realization of assets and liquidation of
liabilities in the normal course of operations. The financial statements do not include any adjustments
relating to the recoverability or classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts or classification of
liabilities, should the Plan be unable to continue as a going concern.

Note 3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation: The Plan is a county-organized health system governed by an 11-member
Commission appointed by Ventura County. GCHP is not reported as a component unit of any
governmental entity. These financial statements present only GCHP and do not purport to, and do not,
present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of Ventura County,
California, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Accounting basis and standards: GCHP uses enterprise fund accounting. Revenues and expenses are
recognized on the accrual basis, using the economic resources measurement focus. The accompanying
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the standards of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Use of estimates: The preparation of financia! statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair value of financial instruments: The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate
fair value because of the short maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying amounts reported in
the balance sheet for capitation receivable, provider receivables, reinsurance and other receivables,
prepaid expenses and other assets, medical claims liability and capitation payable, accounts payable,
premium reserve, accrued payroll, accrued premium tax and other liabilities approximate their fair values,
as they are expected to be realized within the next fiscal year.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid instruments purchased
with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Custodial credit risk—deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure GCHP
may not be able to recover its deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by
public agencies by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under
the state law. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, all accounts were covered by posted collateral.

Revenue recognition and capitation receivable: Capitation revenue is received from the DHCS each
month following the month of coverage based on estimated enroliment and capitation rates as provided
for in the DHCS contract. Enroliment and the capitation rates are subject to retrospective changes by the
DHCS. As such, capitation revenue includes an estimate for amounts receivable from or refundable to the
DHCS for these retrospective changes in estimates. These estimates are continually monitored and
reviewed, with any changes in estimates recognized in the period when determined.
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Plan received approximately $34,153,000 of supplemental fee
revenue from the DHCS as a hospital quality assurance fee as a result of Senate Bill (SB) 335. GCHP
passed these funds through to providers. These amounts were not reflected in the 2013 financial
statements, as the amounts passed through to the providers do not meet requirements for revenue
recognition under Government Accounting Standards.

During fiscal 2013, GCHP entered into an agreement with the DHCS to receive an intergovernmental
transfer (IGT) through a capitation rate increase of $26,759,000. Under the agreement, approximately
$26,224,000 of the funds that were received from the IGT passed through to a provider. Under
Govermnment Accounting Standards, the amounts that will be passed through to providers are not reported
on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position or the balance sheet. GCHP retains
approximately $535,000 of the IGT, for costs to administer the IGT contract, and recorded this amount in
capitation revenue.

Capitation receivable is carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtfu! receivables
based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. Management determines the allowance
for doubtful accounts by regularly evaluating individual receivables and considering payment history,
financial condition and current economic conditions. Subsequent adjustments to the contracted rates or
enroliments are recognized in the period the adjustment is determined.

Provider receivables: Provider receivables are recorded for amounts advanced to providers and for all
claim refunds due from providers. Management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by
regularly evaluating individual receivables and considering payment history, financial condition and
current economic conditions.

Reinsurance: In the normal course of business, the Plan seeks to reduce the loss that may arise from
events that cause unfavorable medical claims results by reinsuring certain levels of risk in various areas
of exposure with a reinsurer. Amounts recoverable from reinsurance are estimated in a manner
consistent with the development of the medical claim liability.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers that relate to paid claims are classified as assets, net of an
allowance for any estimated uncollectible amounts, and as a reduction to medical expenses incurred.
Reinsurance premiums paid are netted against capitation revenue.

Capital assets: Capital assets are stated at cost at the date of acquisition. The costs of normal
maintenance, repairs and minor replacements are charged to expense when incurred.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. Long-lived assets are periodically reviewed for impairment. The estimated useful lives
of three to seven years are used for furniture, fixtures, computer equipment and software. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated over the life of the lease or estimated usefu! life, whichever is shorter.
Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, was approximately $51,000 and
$27,000, respectively.

Medical claims liability, capitation payable and medical expenses: GCHP establishes a claims
liability based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims in process and a provision for claims incurred
but not yet reported, which is actuarially determined based on historical claims payment experience and
other operational changes. Such reserves are continually monitored and reviewed with any adjustments
made as necessary in the period the adjustment is determined. Management believes that the claims
liability is adequate and fairly stated; however, this liability is based on estimates, and the ultimate liability
may differ from the amount provided.
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

GCHP has provider services agreements with several health networks in Ventura County, whereby the
health networks provide care directly to covered members or through subcontracts with other health care
providers. Payment for the services provided by the health networks is on a capitated basis. The
capitation amount is based on contractually agreed-upon terms with each health network.

Premium deficiency reserves: GCHP performed an analysis of its expected future health care and
maintenance costs to determine whether such costs will exceed anticipated future revenues under its
contracts. Should expected costs exceed anticipated revenues, a premium deficiency reserve would be
accrued. A premium deficiency reserve was not required at June 30, 2013 or 2012.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses: GCHP is required to estimate certain expenses, including
payroll, payroll taxes and professional services fees, as of each balance date and make appropriate
accruals based on these estimates. Estimates are affected by the status and timing of services provided
relative to the actual level of services performed by the service providers. The date on which certain
services commence, the leve! of services performed on or before a given date, and the cost of services
are often subject to judgment. These judgments are based upon the facts and circumstances known at
the date of the financial statements. For the periods presented in the financial statements, there were no
material adjustments to the estimates for payroll, payroll taxes and professional services fees.

Accrued compensated absences: GCHP’s policy permits eligible employees to accrue vacation based
on their individual employment agreements. Unused vacation may be carried over into subsequent years,
up to limits indicated in their employment agreements. Accumulated vacation will be paid to the employee
upon separation from service with GCHP. All compensated absences are accrued and recorded in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, and are included in
accrued payroll and employee benefits in the accompanying balance sheets.

Premium reserve: Assembly Bill (AB) 97 was passed by the State of California Assembly during fiscal
year 2011 and received necessary approval from the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services in fiscal
year 2012. The bill included premium rate cuts that resulted in an overall 2.2 percent reduction in the
Plan's rates. GCHP continued to receive capitation payments at original rates and recorded a reserve for
the expected reductions pertaining to the fiscal years for which rates were not yet finalized. As of June 30,
2012, a premium reserve of approximately $1,914,000 was reported as a liability. In June 2013, GCHP
was notified by the State of California that there would be no financial impact resulting from AB 97 for the
respective fiscal years for which the reserve amount pertained. As such, the reserves for those respective
years were no longer needed and were released. There was no premium reserve balance at June 30,
2013.

Implementation advance: The implementation advance represents cash received from Affiliated
Computer Services (ACS) in accordance with an agreement with them for implementation services (see
Note 4). Amounts received in advance are amortized on a straight-line basis over the five-year
contractual period of the agreement, beginning July 2011, and are recognized as a reduction of
administrative expenses.
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net position: During fiscal 2013, the Plan retrospectively adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No.
63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position. This guidance impacted the financial statements by changing the term “net assets” to “net
position.” Net position is broken down into three categories, defined as follows:

Net invested in capital assets: This component of net position consists of capital assets, including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and is reduced by the outstanding balances of
any bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attributable (if any) to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted: This component of net position consists of external constraints placed on net asset use by
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or law or regulations of other
governments (including TNE requirements). It also pertains to constraints imposed by law or constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted: This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “net invested in capital assets.”

Premium taxes: The State of California requires a premium tax at a rate of 2.35 percent of the Medi-Cal
capitated revenue. Premium tax expense for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, was
approximately $7,339,000 and $7,362,000, respectively.

Administrative expenses: Administrative expenses are recognized as incurred and consist of
administrative expenses that directly relate to the implementation and operation costs of the Plan.
Capitation contract acquisition costs are expensed in the period incurred

Operating revenues and expenses: GCHP's statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position (deficit) distinguishes between operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating
revenues result from exchange transactions associated with arranging for the provision of health care
services. Operating expenses are all expenses incurred to arrange for the provision of health care
services, as well as the costs of administration. Claims adjustment expenses are an estimate of the cost
to process the claims and are included in operating expenses. Nonexchange revenues and expenses are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Defined contribution plan: GCHP has adopted, and its employees are participants in, the California
Public Agencies Self-Directed Tax-Advantaged Retirement System (CPA STARS). CPA STARS is a
California public trust organized under the laws of the State of California and includes the STARS 401(a)
Retirement Plan (the 401 Plan), which is a retirement plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue
Code. GCHP participation in the 401 Plan is defined by the 401(a) Trust Agreement and the 401 Plan
Agreement between GCHP and CPA STARS.

All regular employees participate in the CPA STARS 401 Plan. Employee contributions to the 401 Plan
are not allowed. GCHP makes employer contributions to the 401 Plan in an amount annually determined
under the 401 Plan Agreement. For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, GCHP contributions to the
401 Plan were $416,000 and $273,000, respectively.
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred compensation plan: GCHP has adopted, and its employees are participants in, the CPA
STARS 457(b) deferred compensation plan (the 457 Plan). The 457 Plan was created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 and permits employees to defer a portion of their annual salary until
future years. GCHP participation in the 457 Plan is defined by the 457 Trust Agreement between GCHP
and CPA STARS. Employee participation in the 457 Plan is voluntary, and GCHP does not make any
contributions. As such, there were no GCHP employer contributions for fiscal years 2013 and 2012.

Income taxes: GCHP operates under the purview of the Internal Revenue Code, Section 501(a), and
corresponding California Revenue and Taxation Code provisions. As such, GCHP is not subject to federal
or state taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income tax has been recorded in the accompanying financial
statements.

Risk management: The Plan is exposed to various risks of loss from torts, business interruption, errors
and omissions, and natural disasters. Commercial insurance coverage is purchased by GCHP for claims
arising from such matters. No claims have exceeded commercial coverage.

Accounting pronouncements not yet adopted: The following GASB Statements will be effective for
GCHP in future periods: Statement No. 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities,
reclassifies certain items currently being reported as assets and liabilities as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources. In addition, this statement recognizes certain items currently
being reported as assets and liabilities as outflows of resources and inflows of resources.

Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections—2012, amends Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, by removing the provision that limits fund-
based reporting of a state and local government's risk-financing activities to the general fund and the
internal service fund type. This statement also amends Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements,
by modifying the specific guidance on accounting for (1) operating lease payments that vary from a
straight-line basis, (2) the difference between the initial investment (purchase price) and the principal
amount of a purchased loan or group of loans, and (3) servicing fees related to mortgage loans that are
sold when the stated service fee rate differs significantly from a current (normal) servicing fee rate.

The provisions for these statements are effective for GCHP’s year ending June 30, 2014. Management
has not yet completed their assessment of these pending statements; however, they are not expected to
have a material effect on the overall financial statement presentation.

Note 4. Administrative Services Agreements

Affiliated Computer Services (ACS): On June 23, 2010, GCHP entered into a five-year agreement with
ACS to provide certain operational services through June 30, 2016. Compensation for these services is
based on a per-member, per-month cost at varying membership levels. These costs are recorded as
expenses in the period incurred. Total expenses for services provided for the years ended June 30, 2013
and 2012, were approximately $10,964,000 and $11,473,000, respectively, and are reported in
professional fees.

The agreement also calls for ACS to provide implementation services. The cost for these services of
$1,000,000 was expensed in fiscal year 2011. The amount was payable in 24 monthly payments of

$41,667 beginning with the operational start date of July 1, 2011. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, $-0- and
$500,000, respectively, was recorded as accrued implementation costs.
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4. Administrative Services Agreements (Continued)

ACS provided GCHP with an advance payment of $2,300,000 in 2011. According to the terms of the
agreement, should GCHP terminate the agreement prior to the end of the stated five-year term, GCHP is
required to repay any unamortized portion to ACS. The implementation payment is recorded as a liability
and is amortized ratably over a 60-month term ending June 30, 2016. The amortization is recognized as a
reduction in administrative expense. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, $1,380,000 and $1,840,000,
respectively, were recorded as an accrued implementation advance.

On March 3, 2011, GCHP entered into an agreement with ACS Health Administration, Inc. (an affiliate of
ACS) to provide medical management services under the supervision of GCHP's management team.
Total expense for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, was approximately $3,003,000 and
$2,230,000, respectively. Medical management services expense is included in other medical expenses.

Regional Government Services (RGS): Until August 31, 2012, RGS provided staffing and human
resources support to GCHP, and all salaries and benefits were compensated through RGS. Included in
the RGS benefits were a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457 and a 403(b) defined contribution supplemental retirement plan. Workers' compensation,
commercial and general liability insurance, and crime insurance policies are obtained by RGS though the
California Joint Powers Insurance Agency (CJPIA). In addition to reimbursement of the direct cost of the
salaries, benefits and insurance premiums, administrative fees were paid to RGS of approximately
$23,000 and $113,000 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Effective September 1, 2012, the contract between GCHP and RGS was terminated, and all employees
and human resources services were assumed by the Plan.

Script Care services: On February 1, 2011, GCHP entered into a five-year agreement with Script Care
to provide pharmacy administration and management services. Script Care services are specific to the
prescription benefit drug program for GCHP Medi-Cal beneficiaries. Total expense for Script Care
services was approximately $3,190,000 and $2,743,000 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Script care services expense is included in other medical expenses.
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 5. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the following:

Balance Balance
June 30,2012 Increases Decreases June 30, 2013

Capital assets:

Leasehold Improvements $ - $ 30000 $ - $ 30,000

Software and equipment 119,555 3,394 - 122,949

Furniture and fixtures 83,369 5,487 - 88,856

Construction in progress - 66,794 - 66,794
Total capital assets 202,924 105,675 - 308,599
Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization for:

Leasehold improvements - 7,857 - 7,857

Software and equipment 19,024 25,344 - 44,368

Furniture and fixtures 7,872 17,588 - 25,460
Total accumulated depreciation 26,896 50,789 - 77,685
Total capital assets, net $ 176028 $ 54886 $ - $ 230,914

Balance Balance
June 30, 2011 Increases Decreases June 30, 2012

Capital assets:

Software and equipment $ 87637 $ 31918 § - $ 119,555

Furniture and fixtures - 83,369 - 83,369
Total capital assets 87,637 115,287 - 202,924
Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization for;

Software and equipment - 19,024 - 19,024

Furniture and fixtures - 7,872 - 7,872
Total accumulated depreciation - 26,896 - 26,896
Total capital assets, net $ 87637 $ 88391 % - $ 176,028

Note 6. Medical Claims Liability
Medical claims liability consists of the following:

June 30
2013 2012
Claims payable or pending approval $ 9748676 $ 10,357,609
Capitation payable 1,002,624 633,276
Provisions for claims incurred but not yet reported and other 29,901,103 52,610,900

$ 40652403 §$ 63601785
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 6. Medical Claims Liability (Continued)

The cost of health care services is recognized in the period in which care is provided and includes an
estimate of the cost of services that has been incurred but not yet reported. GCHP estimates accrued
claims payable based on historical claims payments and other relevant information. Estimates are
continually monitored and reviewed, and as settlements are made or estimates adjusted, differences are
reflected in current operations. Such estimates are subject to the impact of changes in the regulatory
environment and economic conditions. Given the inherent variability of such estimates, the actual liability
could differ significantly from the amounts provided. While the ultimate amount of claims paid is
dependent on future developments, management is of the opinion that the accrued medical claims
payable is adequate.

The following is a reconciliation of the medical claims liability for the years ended June 30:

2013 2012
Beginning balance $ 63,601,785 $ -
Incurred:

Current 282,922,900 286,245,088
Prior (5,277,875) -
Total incurred 277,645,025 286,245,088

Paid:

Current 235,044,463 231,331,114

Prior 58,323,910 -
Total paid 293,368,373 231,331,114
Net balance at end of year 47,878,437 54,913,974
Provider and reinsurance receivables on paid claims, beginning (8,687,811) -
Provider and reinsurance receivables on paid claims, ending 1,461,777 8,687,811
Medical claims liability and capitation payable at end of year $ 40652403 $ 63,601,785

The liabilities recorded at June 30, 2012, were reduced by approximately $5,278,000 during 2013 to
recognize that actual claims experience was less than previously estimated.

Note 7. Long-Term Liabilities

GCHP has a $7,200,000 subordinated line of credit available from the County of Ventura through July
2014, with an option to extend for an additional two years. The purpose of the subordinated line of credit
is to assist GCHP in meeting its TNE requirements. Repayment of the note is not required until the Plan
meets 100 percent of the minimum TNE and the County of Ventura obtains written approval from the
DHCS to request repayment.
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 7. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

In December 2012 and May 2013, GCHP drew $2,200,000 and $5,000,000, respectively, on the
subordinated line of credit. The outstanding debt balance at June 30, 2013, was $7,200,000. There were
no outstanding balances on the line of credit at June 30, 2012. Interest expense on the borrowed amount
is calculated based upon the monthly Ventura County Treasury Pool rate (approximately 0.498 percent at
June 30, 2013). Accrued interest payable at June 30, 2013, was approximately $9,700 and is included in
other accrued liabilities.

Activity in the line of credit, implementation advance and accrued implementation costs for the years
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, was as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2012 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2013 One Year

Implementation advance $ 1,840,000 $ - $ 460,000 $1,380,000 $ 460,000
Accrued implementation costs 500,000 - 500,000 - -
Line of credit - 7,200,000 - 7,200,000 -
Total long-term liabilities $ 2,340,000 $ 7,200,000 $ 960,000 $ 8,580,000 $ 460,000
Balance Balance Due Within

June 30, 2011 Additions Reductions June 30, 2012 One Year

Implementation advance $ 2,300,000 $ - $ 460000 $ 1,840,000 $ 460,000
Accrued implementation costs 1,000,000 - 500,000 500,000 500,000
Total long-term liabilities $ 3,300,000 % - $ 960000 % 2,340,000 § 960,000

Note 8. Commitments and Contingencies

Lease commitments: GCHP leases office space and equipment under long-term operating leases, with
minimum annual payments as follows:

Minimum Lease

Years Ending June 30, Payments

2014 $ 261,374
2015 221,374
2016 133,330
2017 6,364
2018 2,213
Thereafter -

Litigation: Through the course of ordinary business, the Plan could become party to various legal actions
and subject to various claims arising as a result. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, two lawsuits
were filed against RGS and the Plan by former employees of RGS. As a result, the Plan has recorded a
liability for these contingencies. It is the opinion of management that the ultimate resolution of such claims
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements.
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 8. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Regulatory matters: The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal,
state and local governments. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from
government health care programs together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties. Other
than the matters discussed in Note 2, management believes that GCHP is in compliance with fraud and
abuse, as well as other applicable government laws and regulations. Compliance with such laws and
regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as regulatory actions
unknown or unasserted at this time.

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act: In March 2010, the President signed into law the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010
(collectively referred to as the Healthcare Reform Legislation), which considerably transforms the U.S.
health care system and increases regulations within the U.S. health insurance industry. This legislation is
intended to expand the availability of health insurance coverage to millions of Americans. The Healthcare
Reform Legislation contains provisions that take effect from 2010 through 2018, with most measures
effective in 2014. The total impact of the Healthcare Reform Legislation is unknown, and impact of the
Healthcare Reform Legislation on the operations of GCHP is being evaluated.
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McGladrey LLP

801 Nicollet Mall
West Tower Ste 1100
Y, P o] PR I Minneapolis, MN 55402-2526
Wiclaarev 0 612.332.4300
= - f www.mcgladrey.com

October 30, 2013

Dr. Robert Gonzalez

Executive/Finance Committee Chair

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/
dba Gold Coast Health Plan

2220 E. Gonzales Road, Suite 200

Oxnard, CA 93036

Dear Dr. Gonzalez:

In accordance with your request, we are attaching the accompanying PDF file, which contains an
electronic final version of the report to the Executive/Finance Committee for Ventura County Medi-Cal
Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP or the Plan) for the year ended June 30,
2013. We understand that your request for the electronic copy has been made as a matter of
convenience. You understand that electronic transmissions are not entirely secure and that it is possible
for confidential financial information to be intercepted by others.

This report is not to be modified in any manner. This final version supersedes all prior drafts. Any
preliminary draft version of this report previously provided to you in an electronic format should be deleted
from your computer, and all printed copies of any superseded preliminary draft versions should likewise
be destroyed.

Professional standards and our firm policies require that we perform certain additional procedures
whenever our reports are included, or we are named as accountants, auditors or “experts,” in a document
used in a public or private offering of equity or debt securities. Accordingly, as provided for and agreed to
in the terms of our arrangement letter, GCHP will not include our reports, or otherwise make reference to
us, in any public or private securities offering without first obtaining our consent. Any request to consent is
also a matter for which separate arrangements will be necessary. After obtaining our consent, GCHP also
agrees to provide us with printer's proofs or masters of such offering documents for our review and
approval before printing, and with a copy of the final reproduced material for our approval before it is
distributed. In the event our auditor/client relationship has been terminated when GCHP seeks such
consent, we will be under no obligation to grant such consent or approval.

Thank you for the opportunity to serve you.

Sincerely,

e [l

Steven J. Draxler, Partner
612.376.9590

wpd
Attachment

Member of the RSM Intemational notwork of Independent accounting, tax and consulting firms.
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McGiladrey LLP

801 Nicollet Mall
West Tower Ste 1100

A A Minneapolis, MN 55402-2526

McGladrey 0612.332.4300

www.mcgladrey.com

October 30, 2013

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/
dba Gold Coast Health Plan

2220 E. Gonzales Road, Suite 200

Oxnard, CA 93036

Attention: Members of the Executive/Finance Committee

We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the financial statements of Ventura County
Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP or the Plan) for the year ended
June 30, 2013. This report summarizes certain matters required by professional standards to be
communicated to you in your oversight responsibility for the GCHP financial reporting process.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Commission, Executive/Finance
Committee, and management and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties. It will be our pleasure to respond to any questions you have regarding this report.
We appreciate the opportunity to continue to be of service to the Plan.

/?W e,

Member of the RSM Intemnatlonal natwork of Independent accounting, tax and consulting firms,
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Required Communications

Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Auditor's Communication With Those Charged
With Govermance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the auditor
and those charged with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the following summarizes our
responsibilities regarding the financial statement audit as well as observations arising from our audit that
are significant and relevant to your responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process.

Area Comments
Our Responsibilities With Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in
Regard to the Financial the United States of America have been described to you in our
Statement Audit arrangement letter dated January 24, 2013.

Overview of the Planned
Scope and Timing of the
Financial Statement Audit

Accounting Policies and
Practices

We have issued a separate communication regarding the planned
scope and timing of our audit and have discussed with you our
identification of and planned audit response to significant risks of
material misstatement.

Preferability of Accounting Policies and Practices

Under generally accepted accounting principles, in certain
circumstances, management may select among alternative
accounting practices. In our view, in such circumstances,
management has selected the preferable accounting practice.

Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies

Management has the ultimate responsibility for the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used by GCHP. The Plan did not adopt any
significant new accounting policies, nor have there been any changes
in existing significant accounting policies during the current period.

Significant or Unusual Transactions

In fiscal 2013, under California Senate Bill (SB) 335, GCHP received
approximately $34,153,000 of supplemental fee revenue from the
State of California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) as a
hospital quality assurance fee. GCHP passed these funds through to
providers. These amounts were not reflected in the 2013 financial
statements, as the amounts passed through to the providers do not
meet requirements for revenue recognition under Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 24.

During fiscal 2013, GCHP entered into an agreement with the DHCS
to receive an intergovernmental transfer (IGT) through a capitation
rate increase of $26,759,000. Under the agreement, approximately
$25,595,000 of the funds that were received from the IGT in August
2013 were passed through to Ventura County Medical Center
(VCMC). Under GASB No. 24, the amount that will be passed through
to VCMC are not reported on the statement of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position (deficit) or the balance sheet. GCHP
retains approximately $535,000 of the IGT, for costs to administer the
IGT contract, and recorded this amount in capitation revenue in fiscal
2013.

We did not identify any other significant or unusual transactions or
significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
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Area

Comments

Basis of Accounting

Audit Adjustments

Uncorrected Misstatements

Management’'s Judgments and Accounting Estimates

Summary information about the process used by management in
formulating particularly sensitive accounting estimates and about our
conclusions regarding the reasonableness of those estimates is in the
attached Summary of Accounting Estimates.

During the audit, we noted the following events or conditions that
raised concerns about GCHP's ability to continue as a going concern:

The DHCS has raised concerns to GCHP about the operational
results and financial status of GCHP. As a result of these concerns,
GCHP is currently operating under a corrective action plan (CAP) by
the DHCS. GCHP's ability to continue as a going concern is
dependent on its progress and resolution of the concerns raised in the
DHCS CAP.

See Note 2 to the audited financial statements for additional
disclosures regarding this matter.

We reviewed management's plans that are intended to mitigate the
adverse effects of such conditions or events. Based on our review, we
have concluded that the Plan’s disclosures with respect to the CAP
are adequate.

The financial statements were prepared on the assumption that the
Plan will continue as a going concern. We have included an
emphasis-of-matter paragraph in our audit report to reflect these
facts.

Adjustments recorded to the original trial balance during the audit
resulted in an increase to net position of approximately $4,155,000
and include the following:

Identified as a result of audit procedures:

e Record a liability and increase claims expense by approximately
$43,000.

+ Reduce claims expense and increase cash for duplicate claims
payments of approximately $110,000.

Identified by management:

e [ncrease capitation revenue by approximately $11,426,000, net of
Managed Care Organization (MCO) tax of approximately
$7,338,000, resulting in a receivable of approximately $4,139,000
and accrued expenses of approximately $51,000 for final rates
from the DHCS after year-end.

Uncorrected misstatements are summarized in the attached Summary
of Uncorrected Misstatements.
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Area

Comments

Disagreements With
Management

Consultations With Other
Accountants

Significant Issues
Discussed With
Management

Significant Difficulties
Encountered in Performing
the Audit

Letter Communicating
Significant Deficiencies in
Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting

Significant Written
Communications Between
Management and Our Firm

We encountered no disagreements with management over the
application of significant accounting principles, the basis for
management's judgments on any significant matters, the scope of the
audit, or significant disclosures to be included in the financial
statements.

We are not aware of any consultations management had with other
accountants about accounting or auditing matters.

We discussed the monitoring status and operational and reporting
issues identified by the DHCS, the TNE status, and DHCS
compliance matters disclosed in the audited financial statements.

We did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with
management during the audit.

We have separately communicated the significant deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting identified during our audit of
the financial statements, and this communication is attached as
Exhibit A.

Copies of significant written communications between our firm and the
management of the Plan, including the representation letter provided
to us by management, are attached as Exhibits B through E.

Page 3
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/
dba Gold Coast Health Plan
Summary of Accounting Estimates
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon
management’s current judgment. The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and
experience about past and current events and certain assumptions about future events. You may wish to
monitor throughout the year the process used to determine and record these accounting estimates. The
following describes the significant accounting estimates reflected in the Plan's June 30, 2013, financial

statements.

Estimate
Valuation and
collectibility of
receivables, including
provider receivables

Accounting Policy
Revenues and their
related receivables are
based on contract terms
and are reduced to their
estimated net collectible
amounts.

Management estimates
an allowance for
accounts receivable
balances when deemed
appropriate. Amounts
determined to be
uncollectible are written
off.

Management’s

Estimation Process
Management reviews
aged accounts
receivable balances to
determine specific
accounts that require an
allowance for
uncollectibility based on
the ability to collect the
receivable balance.

Basis for Our
Conclusions on

Reasonableness of
Estimate

We tested the propriety
of management'’s
information and
performed testing of
subsequent receipts.
Based on our
procedures, the
estimates appear
reasonable.

Reinsurance
recoverable

GCHP seeks to reduce
the loss that may arise
from large claims by
reinsuring certain levels
of risk with a reinsurer.
Amounts recoverable
from reinsurers that
relate to paid claims are
classified as assets, net
of an allowance for any
estimated uncollectible
amounts, and as a
reduction to medical
expenses incurred.

Management calculates
reinsurance recoveries
by reviewing claims paid
that exceed reinsured
loss thresholds.
Management then
reviews these estimated
recoveries receivable
based on terms of the
contract with the
reinsurer and for
collectibility based on

aging.

We tested
management’s process
for calculating the
amount of reinsurance
recoverable and
concluded that the
estimate is reasonable.

Page 4
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Estimate
Reserve for claims
liability and claims
payable

Accounting Policy
Management
establishes claims
liability based on
estimates of the ultimate
cost of claims in
process and provision
for claims incurred but
not paid (IBNP).

Management’s

Estimation Process
The estimate of the
claims liability is based
on historical claim
patterns and certain
management
assumptions.

Management uses
subsequent claims run-
out and prior claims
experience to determine
the amount of the
estimated liability.
Milliman, an
independent actuarial
firm, was engaged to
provide an opinion on
the adequacy of the
IBNP claims reserve at
June 30, 2013.

Basis for Our
Conclusions on

Reasonableness of
Estimate
We tested the propriety
of management's
information, and we
read the independent
actuary’s repont. Our
internal actuary
performed a
corroborative estimate
of the claims liability.
Based on our
procedures, the
estimates appear
reasonable.

Premium revenue and
premium reserve

Capitation revenue is
recognized in the period
it is earned. Revenue
adjustments are
recorded in the period
they can be reasonably
determined.

During 2013, GCHP has
recorded revenue based
on 2012 capitation
rates. When final 2013
rates were available,
management adjusted
revenue to final rates.

We tested GCHP
capitation revenue using
estimated data provided
by the State of
California and
management's analysis.
We also reviewed the
journal entry made and
supporting
documentation to adjust
revenue to the final
rates. Based on our
procedures, the
estimates appear

reasonable.
Reserve for premium A premium deficiency Management performs | We reviewed the
deficiency reserve is recorded periodic analysis of its propriety of
when there is an expected future health management’s analysis,
expected loss in the care costs and including the 2014

subsequent year from
contracts that have
been committed to at
year-end.

maintenance costs by
line of business to
determine whether such
costs will exceed
anticipated future
revenues under its
contracts. Should
expected costs exceed
anticipated revenues, a
premium deficiency
reserve is accrued.

financial forecast.
Based on our
procedures, the
estimates appear
reasonable.
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/
dba Gold Coast Health Plan

Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements

Year Ended June 30, 2013

During the course of our audit, we accumulated uncorrected misstatements that were determined by
management to be immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows and to the related financial statement disclosures. Following is a summary of
those differences.

Increase (Increase) Decrease (Increase) Increase
(Decrease) Net Assets Decrease (Decrease)
Description in Assets Liabilities (Deficit) in Revenue in Expense
Current-year misstatements:
Projected overpayment of claims $ - $ 318,000 $ - $ - $ (318,000)
3 - (318,000)
Close revenue/expense to net assets
(deficit) - - (318,000)
Net effect on net assets (deficit) $ - g 318,000 g (318,000)
Page 6
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McGladrey LLP

801 Nicollet Mall
West Tower Ste 1100
YO [P iy (PP, [ Minneapolis, MN 55402-2526
IViCQ !; arey 0 612.332.4300
' www.mcgladrey.com

October 30, 2013

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/
dba Gold Coast Health Plan

2220 E. Gonzales Road, Suite 200

Oxnard, CA 93036

Attention: Members of the Executive/Finance Committee

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed
Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP or the Plan) as of and for the year ended June 30,
2013, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we
considered the Plan’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of GCHP's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of GCHP's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses, and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as discussed below, we identified
certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or combination
of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider the following control deficiencies in the Plan's internal control to be significant deficiencies.

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES
CLAIMS PROCESSING AND CLAIMS RESERVES

Claims processing: Accurate payment of claims is the basis for estimating the claims liability and
maintaining provider relationships and contract compliance. Because the claims liability is a significant
estimate, errors in the claims payment systems could have a material impact on the financial statements.

The medical claims processing function is outsourced to a third-party vendor, specifically, ACS Health
Administration, Inc. (ACS). Pharmacy claims are processed by ScriptCare. Due to the nature and
susceptibility of processing data electronically, management should ensure that the necessary controls
are in place and operating effectively to ensure that the data being sent to the third parties and
subsequently reviewed and uploaded to GCHP's financial and claims system is complete and accurate.
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Members of the Executive/Finance Committee

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/
dba Gold Coast Health Plan

October 30, 2013
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While the number or errors detected in the 2013 audit were less significant than in the 2012 audit, we
noted that certain medical claims selected for testing were not adjudicated properly. Each of the
improperly adjudicated claims had been manually adjudicated using incorrect provider contract rates. The
Plan has significantly improved the medical claims auto-adjudication rate; therefore, these errors will likely
continue to decline. However, manual adjudication of certain claims increases the likelihood of processing
errors, so we suggest implementing additional controls over manually adjudicated claims.

We recommend the following:

e Management should continue to perform audits on the procedures performed by third-party vendors
who process claims information.

e Consider requiring ACS and other vendors that process financial data to undergo an audit of their
processes and controls and obtain a Service Organization Controls (SOC 1) report or, alternatively,
perform similar processes using resources internal to GCHP to understand and test the operating
effectiveness of these key third-party vendor controls, as GCHP relies on these systems for
appropriate financial reporting.

e Assure claims are being processed appropriately by implementing or continuing to use the following
controls:

- Implement a formal control that demonstrates fee schedule uploads are being reviewed by GCHP
employees after the information is sent and input into the claims system or changes to the state
or provider fee schedules occur.

- Continue to review processes and procedures to assess whether claims were processed
accurately.

- Continue to consistently follow and monitor formal information technology (IT) change
mangement policies that govern all types of IT changes (upgrade, patch, vendor-initiated,
emergency, etc.) made by either ACS or GCHP.

- GCHP should continue to monitor ACS policies and procedures and assure these policies are in
place for adjudication of claims and IT controls, particularly in absence of a SOC 1 report.

Claims reserves: We commend GCHP management on the implementation of monitoring procedures
both throughout the year and through obtaining a mid-year opinion from an independent actuary to assure
incurred but not paid (IBNP) claims reserves are appropriately set. The accuracy of IBNP assessments is
a key estimate in the financial statements.

We recommend continuing to monitor IBNP levels monthly and recommend evaluating the policy on
calculating premium deficiency reserves, including whether the Plan includes interest income in the
calculation. In addition, we suggest estimating reinsurance recoveries on IBNP. An actuary can assist
with the determination of such accruals as premium deficiency reserves, pharmacy accruals, reinsurance
recoveries, and capitation payable.

SEGREGATION OF DUTIES AND INTERNAL POLICIES

Segregation of duties—accounting: An effective system of internal accounting control contemplates an
adequate segregation of duties so that no one individual handles a transaction from its initiation to its
completion. While GCHP has added personnel during the year, the limited number of accounting and
finance personnel at GCHP prevents a proper segregation of accounting functions necessary to assure
adequate internal control. As a result, some aspects of internal accounting control that rely upon
adequate segregation of duties were not effective for the entirety of the year.
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/
dba Gold Coast Health Plan
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Management employees perform monthly analytical and review procedures on key accounts and
transactions; however, there is limited documented oversight to these functions other than a review of the
financial statements by the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, and/or the Commission. This may
create an opportunity to misappropriate assets and misrepresent financial position. Supervision and
periodic review procedures can assist in mitigating the lack of proper segregation of duties.

During our audit, we noted that while management reviewed and approved check runs and bank
reconciliations, formal written evidence of approval or review was not always available. In conjunction
with the segregation of duties deficiency noted earlier, this lack of controls heightens the risk of
misappropriated assets and financial statement errors.

The lack of monitoring controls also leaves GCHP vulnerable to accounting errors. While less significant
than errors detected in the 2012 audit, we identified two audit adjustments in accounts payable and cash
reconciliations in the fiscal 2013 audit. We recommend GCHP continue to review and monitor its
processes for recording and reviewing all entries to ensure proper financial reporting and adherence to
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

While additional personnel are added to the finance department, we recommend GCHP continue working
to eliminate conflicting or combined duties through segregation of duties, to the extent possible with the
resources available, and to put more formalized compensating supervisory controls in place, including
requiring dual signatures on significant disbursements. In addition, we recommend implementing formal
approval processes for monthly reconciliations, as we noted instances where approval was not readily
identified.

Segregation of duties—payroll: The Plan began processing payroll during fiscal year 2013. In review
over access controls, we noted the user listing indicated several users with super-user capability. The
super-user access allows an employee to initiate and approve transactions. We recommend limiting
personnel with super-user status. Also, we understand that GCHP has implemented formal approval
processes, noting supervisory signoffs of all payroll changes. Lastly, we recommend, any changes
initiated by the super users should be reviewed for appropriateness.

Segregation of duties—IT: During our review of IT controls, we noted that there is currently an informal
process to periodically review GCHP Windows network access.

We recommend that the Plan draft and implement a formal procedure around periodic user account
review, at least annually, and expand to include Multiview. We recommend that the Plan consistently
follow the process to check for terminated employees and that access rights are commensurate with job
responsibilities. A formal policy for administering user access should be developed, including the
utilization of an access request form for tracking the access administration process, including request,
approval, and implementation of privileges, as well as strong password policies. There should also be a
process to assure that terminated employee access is removed promptly. These steps will ensure that
access is appropriate for job responsibilities and conflicting job duties are minimized.

We recommend GCHP continue to eliminate conflicting duties through IT controls and segregation of
duties to the extent possible and that you put compensating supervisory controls in place.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE RECONCILIATIONS AND ALLOWANCES

GCHP has a number of accounts receivable from providers, the reinsurer, and for capitation receivable.
The allowance for doubtful accounts on receivable balances is a significant estimate and is determined by
management. We noted that the reconciliations for accounts receivable balances included all activity
incurred during the fiscal year, but didn't necessarily identify the receivable balance by paying entity at
year-end. Without a schedule that identifies which party will pay the amount to be collected, it is difficult to
assess the allowance for doubtful accounts.
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A point-in-time reconciliation of accounts receivable and assessment of the collectibility of accounts
receivable should be performed monthly to assure interim financials properly reflect the best estimate of
the expected value of accounts receivable. We recommend this assessment be based on knowledge of
the customer and assessment of their ability to pay, aging, collection terms and historical collection rates.

Any significant write-offs should be communicated to the Executive/Finance Committee on a timely basis.

In addition, we identified an error in the cash reconciliation in both 2012 and 2013 due to an error in
reconciling outstanding checks in the claims account.

CLOSING

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to GCHP and would be happy to assist you in addressing
and implementing any of the suggestions in this letter.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Commission, Executive/Finance
Committee, and management of GCHP and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone
other than these specified parties.
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Significant Written Communications Between Management and Our
Firm
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McGladrey LLP

801 Nicollet Mall
West Tower Ste 1100
Minneapolis, MN 55402-2526

McGladrey 013352 420

www.mcgladrey.com

October 30, 2013

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/

dba Gold Coast Health Plan

2220 E. Gonzales Road, Suite 200
Oxnard, CA 93036

Attention: Members of the Executive/Finance Committee

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the financial statements of Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/dba Gold
Coast Health Plan (GCHP or the Plan) for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 30, 2013. In connection therewith, we advise you as follows:

1.

We are independent certified public accountants with respect to GCHP and conform to the standards
of the profession as contained in the Code of Professional Conduct and pronouncements of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Rules of Professional Conduct of the
California Board of Public Accountancy.

The engagement partner and engagement director, who are certified public accountants, have

17 years and 13 years, respectively, of experience in public accounting and are experienced in
auditing insurance companies. Members of the engagement team, 83 percent of whom have had
experience in auditing insurance companies and 83 percent of whom are certified public accountants,
were assigned to perform tasks commensurate with their training and experience.

We understand that GCHP intends to file its audited financial statements and our report thereon with
the California Department of Health Care Services and that the California Department of Health Care
Services will be relying on that information in monitoring and regulating the financial condition of
GCHP.

While we understand that an objective of issuing a report on the financial statements is to satisfy
regulatory requirements, our audit was not planned to satisfy all objectives or responsibilities of
insurance regulators. In this context, GCHP and the California Department of Health Care Services
should understand that the objective of an audit of financial statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America is to form an opinion and issue a report
on whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the assets, liabilities, net
position, results of operations, and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Member of the RSM | k of Independent ac g, tax and consulting firms.
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Consequently, under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we have
the responsibility, within the inherent limitations of the auditing process, to plan and perform our audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether caused by error or fraud, and to exercise due professional care in the conduct
of the audit. The concept of selective testing of the data being audited, which involves judgment both
as to the number of transactions to be audited and the areas to be tested, has been generally
accepted as a valid and sufficient basis for an auditor to express an opinion on financial statements.
Audit procedures that are effective for detecting errors, if they exist, may be ineffective for detecting
misstatement resulting from fraud. Because of the characteristics of fraud, a properly planned and
performed audit may not detect a material misstatement resulting from fraud. In addition, an audit
does not address the possibility that material misstatements caused by error or fraud may occur in
the future. Also, our use of professional judgment and the assessment of materiality for the purpose
of our audit means that matters may exist that would have been assessed differently by insurance
commissioners.

It is the responsibility of the management of GCHP to adopt sound accounting policies, to maintain an
adequate and effective system of accounts, and to establish and maintain internal control that will,
among other things, provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions are executed in accordance
with management'’s authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

The California Department of Health Care Services should exercise due diligence to obtain whatever
other information may be necessary for the purpose of monitoring and regulating the financial position
of GCHP and should not rely solely upon the independent auditor’s report.

4. We will retain the workpapers prepared in the conduct of our audit until the California Department of
Health Care Services has filed a Report of Examination covering fiscal 2013, but not longer than
seven years. After notification to GCHP, we will make the workpapers available for review by the
California Department of Health Care Services at the offices of the insurer, at our offices, at the
offices of the California Department of Health Care Services, or at any other reasonable place
designated by the California Department of Health Care Services. Furthermore, in the conduct of the
aforementioned periodic review by the California Department of Health Care Services, photocopies of
pertinent audit workpapers may be made (under the control of the accountant), and such copies may
be retained by the California Department of Health Care Services.

5. The engagement partner has served in that capacity with respect to GCHP since 2011, is authorized
by the California Board of Public Accountancy to practice public accounting in the state of California,
and is a member in good standing of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

6. To the best of our knowledge and belief, we are in compliance with the requirements of section 7 of
the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) Model Rule (Regulation) Requiring
Annual Audited Financial Reports regarding qualifications of independent certified public accountants.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Commission, Executive/Finance

Committee, and management of GCHP and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone
other than these specified parties.
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October 30, 2013

McGladrey LLP

801 Nicollet Avenue

11" Floor, West Tower
Minneapolis, MN 55402-2526

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Ventura
County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission / dba Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP or the Plan) which
comprise the balance sheet as of June 30, 2013 and the related statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position, cash flows, and the related notes to the financial statements for the year, then
ended. We confirm that we are responsible for the fair presentation in the financial statements of financial
position, results of operations, and cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of October 30, 2013, the following
representations made to you during your audit:

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit arrangement letter dated
January 24, 2013, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements referred to
above in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

2. GCHP uses enterprise fund accounting and is a county organized health system operating in Ventura
County, California

3. GCHP is not reported as a component unit of any governmental entity. The financial statements
referred to above present only GCHP and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial
position, change in financial position, or cash flows of the County of Ventura, California.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

5. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair
value, are reasonable and reflect our judgment based on our knowledge and experience about past
and current events and our assumptions about conditions we expect to exist and courses of action we
expect to take.

There are no undisclosed related party relationships or transactions to be accounted for or disclosed.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S GAAP requires
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

8. The effects of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

2220 East Gonzales Road, Suite 200, Oxnard, Ca 83036 ' Member Sesvices: 888-301-1228 ' Fax: 805-981-5314
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11.

12.

13.

14

15.

16.

17,

The Plan has satisfactory title to all owned assets.

. We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the

financial statements in the event of noncompliance except for the following:

As of June 30, 2012, GCHP's tangible net equity (TNE) requirement had not been met. GCHP has
been working with the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) in this regard. DHCS
has developed a corrective action plan to assist the Plan in achieving compliance with TNE and other
operational and reporting requirements. We believe that the Plan will be able to accomplish the items
on the corrective action plan within the time frames required. The ability of GCHP to continue as a
going concern will be impacted by the results of these actions. While DHCS has the authority to
require the Plan to merge with another plan or cease business, we have had no communication,
written or verbal, from DHCS that indicates that they plan to exercise this authority. We believe that
GCHP has taken appropriate action to ensure the Plan’s ability to continue as a going concern.

We agree with the findings of specialists engaged by us in evaluating loss reserves and have
adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining the amounts and
disclosures used in the financial statements and underlying accounting records, We did not give or
cause any instructions to be given to specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an
attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an impact on
the independence or objectivity of the specialists.

The loss reserve specialist used by management in estimating the loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves had a sufficient level of competence and experience in loss reserving, including knowledge
about the types of insurance written by the Plan as well as an understanding of the appropriate
methods for calculating such reserve estimates. We recognize we are responsible for the actuarial
amounts and balances and, in our opinion, all such amounts are fairly presented.

All reported receivables represent valid claims. Premiums receivable represent valid claims against
the DHCS as indicated and do not include amounts for policies written subsequent to the balance
sheet dates. An adequate provision has been made for uncollectible amounts, discounts, and
allowances that may be incurred in the collection of receivables at those dates.

No deferred acquisition costs have been recorded as the Plan's policy is to expense these costs as
incurred.

The reinsurance contracts provided to you represent all of the Plan’'s agreements with respect to its

ceding and assuming reinsurance activities, and there are no modifications, either written or oral, of

the terms of the Plan's reinsurance contracts or additional reinsurance agreements that have not yet
been provided to you.

All reported reinsurance recoverable amounts, less applicable allowances, are collectible; however,
the Plan remains primarily liable in the event that the reinsurers do not honor these obligations. We
are unaware of any material adverse change in the financial condition of the Plan's reinsurers that
might raise concern regarding their ability to honor their reinsurance commitments.

The liability for unpaid claims (and claims adjustment expenses) includes estimates of amounts due
on reported claims and claims that have been incurred but that were not reported as of June 30,
2013. Such estimates are based on actuarial projections applied to historical claim payment data.
Such liabilities represent the Plan's best estimate of amounts that are reasonable and adequate to
discharge the Plan's obligations for claims incurred but unpaid as of June 30, 2013.
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18.

19.

Claims adjustment expenses have been paid in advance based on a per member-per month
arrangement with ACS Health Administration, Inc. (ACS). ACS has the contractual obligation to
continue claims adjustment activities for incurred claims until such claims have been properly
adjudicated.

We have informed you of all uncorrected misstatements.

Information Provided

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements such as records, documentation, and other matters.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the meetings of commissioners and committees of commissioners, or summaries of
actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud. We are not aware of any fraud related to financia! reporting.

We have no knowledge of allegations of fraud or suspected fraud, affecting the entity's financial
statements involving:

a. Management,
b. Employees who have significant roles in the internal control.
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity's financial
statements received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or
others.

We have no knowledge of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with laws and regulations
whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements other than noted in #10
above.

We are not aware of any undisclosed pending or threatened litigation and claims whose effects
should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity's related parties and all the related-party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

We have informed you of all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls that
could adversely affect the entity's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data.
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29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34,
35.

36.

37.

There have been no reports of regulatory examinations that have been completed in the past year
and we have informed you that no such examinations are currently in process other than the activities
related to the corrective action by DHCS. We are not aware of any allegations of noncompliance that
should be considered for disclosure or as a basis for recording a loss contingency.

We have made available to you all significant contracts and agreements and have communicated to
you all significant oral agreements. We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements
that would have a material effect on the statutory financial statements in the event of noncompliance.
We have also informed you of all oral agreements for which signed documents have not yet been
prepared through October 30, 2013.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices other than the letter regarding “Consolidated Corrective
Action Plan for Gold Coast Health Plan" dated September 18, 2013 (and prior versions), which has
been provided to you.

We have estimated GCHP capitation revenue based on signed DHCS contract amendments and the
most recent rate information available to us.

We believe that MCO tax should not be accrued on CBAS revenues as it was not included in our
revenue rates.

We expect that GCHP will continue as a going concern through June 30, 2014.

GCHP uses enterprise fund accounting. Revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis
using the economic resources measurement focus. The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the standards of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

We have determined that we are not required to follow the Annual Financial Reporting Model
Regulation (Mode! Audit Rule) as promulgated by the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners.

During the course of your audit, you may have accumulated records containing data that should be
reflected in our books and records. All such data have been so reflected. Accordingly, copies of such
records in your possession are no longer needed by us and should be treated according to HIPAA
and our signed Business Associate Agreement.

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2013

We believe that the effects of the uncorrected misstatements aggregated by you and summarized below
are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate to the financial statements taken as a whole. For
purposes of this representation, we consider items to be material, regardless of their size, if they involve
the misstatement or omission of accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes
it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or
influenced by the omission or misstatement
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Increase {increase) Decrease {Increase) Increase
(Decrease) Net Assets Decrease (Decrease)
Description in Assels Liabilities (Deficit) in Revenue in Expense
Current-year misstatements:
Adjust claims expense and claims
payable for projected overpayment  $ - $§ 3161156 & - $ - § (318,115)
e 8 _[ABUIS)
Close revenue/expense to net assets
(deficit) - S (318,115
Net effect on net assets (deficit) 3 - $ 318115 § (318.115)

Respectfully,

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission / dba Gold Coast Health Plan

C\AMM Gac

Michael Engelhard! Chief €xecutive Officer

Date Signed (e / 20

, 2013
Michelle Raleigh, Chief Financial Officer
Date Signed Lo ! >0 , 2013
%er, Finance Manager
Date Signed ocTogar 3o , 2013
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McGladrey LLP

801 Nicollet Mall
West Tower Ste 1100
A A k Minneapolis, MN 55402-2526
: McGlac h'{‘?‘\,f 0 612.332.4300
www.mcgladrey.com

October 30, 2013

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/
dba Gold Coast Health Plan

2220 E. Gonzales Road, Suite 200

Oxnard, CA 93036

Attention: Members of the Executive/Finance Committee

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care
Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and have
issued our report thereon.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with audit and related professional practice standards of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and the independence standards of the
Government Auditing Standards (GAS), issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Independence from GCHP is crucial to the performance of our audit services. We have been asked to
communicate the following to the Executive/Finance Committee of GCHP:

1. Disclose, in writing, all relationships between our firm and GCHP that, in our professional judgment,
may reasonably be thought to bear on independence.

2. Confirm in writing that, in our professional judgment, we are independent of GCHP.

We are not aware of any relationship between our firm and GCHP that, in our professional judgment, may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.

In our professional judgment, McGladrey LLP is independent with respect to GCHP within the meaning of
Rule 101 of the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct as well as GAS standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Commission, Executive/Finance

Committee, and management and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

/?c% e,

Member of the RSM Intematlonal k of independent ac g, tax and consulting firms.
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McGladrey LLP

801 Nicollet Mall
West Tower Ste 1100

RNA~ A Minneapolis, MN 55402-2526
= Vic(zladrev 0 612.332.4300
| ! www.mcgladrey.com

October 30, 2013

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/
dba Gold Coast Health Plan

2220 E. Gonzales Road, Suite 200

Oxnard, CA 93036

Attention: Members of the Executive/Finance Committee

This letter includes comments, observations and suggestions with respect to matters that came to our
attention in connection with our audit of the financial statements of Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed
Care Commission/dba Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP or the Plan) for the year ended June 30, 2013. We
have repeated the following comments from our prior audit because they are still applicable for our audit
of the current financial statements. These items are offered as constructive suggestions to be considered
part of the ongoing process of modifying and improving GCHP's practices and procedures.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Executive/Finance Committee's commitment to the improvement of GCHP's operations should
include an ongoing commitment to develop and enhance the performance capabilities of an internal audit
function.

While a formal internal audit function is not required, we recommend the Plan begin developing a
department that can effectively execute the functions of an internal audit department. We suggest the
implementation of this department over time as GCHP develops into an established entity. The objectives
of an internal audit function are to assist the Executive/Finance Committee and management in the
effective discharge of their responsibilities by furnishing them with analyses, recommendations and risk
mitigation suggestions concerning the activities reviewed. This involves going beyond the accounting and
financial records to regularly test financial cycles and specific areas of risk.

By establishing an internal audit function, more accurate and timely data will be available regarding
operational activities in various departments. This will allow financial services to better monitor their
financial activities, as well as strengthen the existing internal control structure and provide more timely
identification and resolution of issues.

We recommend an internal audit function with some of the following attributes:

o The internal audit function should be based on a thorough risk assessment. The risk assessment
should then drive an annual plan, which is followed by the internal audit function. The annual plan
should be developed by the internal audit function, with input from management and the
Executive/Finance Committee, and should focus on key risk areas. The audit plan should encompass
the entirety of GCHP's operations, including all transaction cycles, departments, internal controls, etc.

e The internal audit staff should have no direct responsibilities for nor authority over any of the activities
reviewed. Therefore, the internal audit review and appraisal does not in any way relieve other
employees of GCHP of the responsibilities assigned to them.

e In some cases, it may be logical to enlist the use of specialists to assist in the audit or compliance

projects. In those circumstances, the internal staff should closely oversee and review the analyses
performed.

Member of the RSM Intemational network of independent accounting, tax and consulting firms. 2c-75



Members of the Executive/Finance Committee
Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/

dba Gold Coast Health Plan

October 30, 2013
Page 2

GCHP should provide the internal audit personnel full access to all records and personnel relevant to
the subject under review.

In addition to the orthodox internal audit approach, which concerns itself with control testing, detection
and prevention of fraud, and deviations from GCHP policies, the activities of an internal audit function
should also include operational auditing. Operational auditing is an objective appraisal of the activities of
a department or service within an organization with a view toward evaluating the efficiency and
effectiveness of various activities within a department or service organization. Some examples of
successful operational auditing include:

Medical claims processing—The claims processing cycle is the backbone of GCHP. Ensuring
appropriate payment processing according to contractual fee schedules, efficient flow of member
information, and accurate data collection for actuary assessment and financial reporting is paramount
in every insurance organization. Internal audit should play a vital role in overseeing and supporting
GCHP through claims processing cycle auditing.

Administrative services management—While a focus on the medical claims expense is important for
any insurance provider, the cost of professional services accounts for a significant portion of GCHP's
operating budget. Assuring that professional service providers have the capability to adequately
process and report activity is essential. The internal audit function can have a positive impact on
managing and monitoring the design, transaction integrity and reporting measures, in both a financial
and operational aspect, for professional service contracts.

Cash receipts and disbursements—GCHP should ensure that there are policies and procedures in
place related to the following:

1) Segregation of duties in the cash receipt and disbursement cycles is adequate.

2) Accounts payable invoices are processed timely in order to maximize discounts and avoid
finance/late charges.

3) Accounts payable invoices are properly canceled so as to avoid a duplicate payment.

4) Proper authorization is obtained before payments are made, and vendor listings are periodically
reviewed.

5) Checks and check-writing capabilities are secured.
6) Bank statements are reviewed and reconciled on a monthly basis.

Business risk management—The auditing profession has issued an auditing standard that
encourages organizations to consider their own fraud prevention controls and programs. As a result,
we encourage management to consider what the risks are related to potential fraud and what
procedures are in place or should be put into place to reduce the risks. This is a role that could be
assumed by an internal audit function.

Significant new systems—While internal audit should not be overwhelmed with special projects, this
department can be a valuable source for testing of specific areas identified by finance, risk
management, legal counsel or the compliance function.
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Members of the Executive/Finance Committee

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission/
dba Gold Coast Health Plan
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Page 3

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROVIDER CONTRACTS

GCHP engages external professional services providers for a significant portion of its back-office
functions. We recommend that GCHP pursue clauses in these administrative contracts limiting GCHP's
exposure for errors made by the professional services provider. This clause should limit the period that
GCHP will compensate for errors made in claims or payroll processing (i.e., 12 months), and would not
allow for compensation over an indefinite period of time.

Additionally, during our review of GCHP’s contract with ACS Health Administration, Inc. (ACS), we noted
there is a level of ambiguity regarding which party (GCHP or ACS) is financially responsible for
processing run-out claims upon termination or expiration of the contract. We recommend management
work with ACS to add clarity to this provision of the contract and that management ensures the
accounting records properly reflect the clarified understanding between the parties to the contract.

CLOSING

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to GCHP and would be happy to assist you in addressing
and implementing any of the suggestions in this letter.

This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Commission, Executive/Finance
Committee, and management of GCHP and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

/?M teP
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